
Page 1 of 4 

   

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, MAY 13, 2019 
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

19C‐0170. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

19C‐0171. Roll Call 

19C‐0172. Establishment of Quorum 
19C‐0173. Pledge of Allegiance 
19C‐0174. Reports of Standing Committees 
19C‐0175. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 
   
  

SWEARING IN OF NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
19C‐0176. 

 
Swearing in of Newly Elected Officials 

‐‐  

 
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

19C‐0177. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by William J. Deiter, DBA Big Bill’s 
Sandwich Shop & Coffee Bar, 301 N. Main Street, for a Class J Corporation Liquor 
License   

5‐9  

 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

None. 
 

Page 1 of 130



Page 2 of 4 

CONSENT AGENDA CA19‐9 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

19C‐0178. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of April 22, 2019  

10‐15  

 
19C‐0179. 

 
Acceptance of March 2019 Financial Report  

‐‐  

 
19C‐0180. 

  
Approval of Employee Appointments for the Period May 14, 2019 to May 11, 
2020 

 16 

 
19C‐0181. 

 
Approval of a Request by the Galena Area Chamber of Commerce to Host the 
42nd Annual Halloween Parade, Saturday, October 26, 2019 

17 

 
19C‐0182. 

 
Approval of Request by the Galena‐Jo Daviess County Historical Society to 
Conduct the 26 Annual Cemetery Walk in the Old City Cemetery, June 8 and 9, 
2019 

18 

 
19C‐0183. 

 
Approval of a Request by the Galena‐Jo Daviess County Historical Society to 
Conduct the Third Annual Heroes for History Stair Challenge, September 7, 2019 

19‐20 

 
19C‐0184. 

 
Approval of a Street Closure Permit for Winnebago Drive from Menominee Drive 
to the East Culdesac for a Neighborhood Picnic on June 23, 2019 from 1:00 p.m. 
to 9:00 p.m.  

21‐22 

 
19C‐0185. 

 
Approval of a Contract for $6,273 with LW Allen for the Replacement of a 
Differential Level Transducer at the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

23‐24 

 
19C‐0186. 

 
Approval of the Purchase of a Sewer Video Camera from Allan J Coleman 
Company for $10,641 

25 

 
19C‐0187. 

 
Approval of the Purchase of Two Refrigerated Samplers for the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant from the Hach Company for $8,658 

26 

 
19C‐0188. 

 
Approval of the Purchase of a Compression Machine for Contrete Testing from 
Forney Industries for $9,947 

27 

 
19C‐0189. 

  
Approval of a Funding Agreement for May 1, 2019‐April 30, 2020 with the 
Galena Art and Recreation Center  

28‐29  

 
19C‐0190. 

 
Approval of a Facilities Lease with Midwest Medical Center for the Placement of 
Communication Equipment on the Franklin Street Water Tower 

31‐55 

 
19C‐0191. 

  
Approval of a Funding Agreement for May 1, 2019‐April 30, 2020 with the 
Galena‐Jo Daviess County Historical Society and Museum 

56‐57  

 
19C‐0192. 

 
Approval of Wage Rates for Seasonal Grounds Maintenance Employees 

58 

Page 2 of 130



Page 3 of 4 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
None. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

19C‐0193. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by Studio One Green Spa and Salon, 
400 Wild Indigo Lane, and Lisa Kempner, 116 S. Main Street, to Create a New 
Classification of Liquor License for Beer and Wine Only and Without Food Service 

 
59‐61 

 
19C‐0194. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on an Agreement for Operations and 
Maintenance of the City of Galena Water and Wastewater Treatment Facilities 
and Distribution and Collection Systems 

 
62‐92 

 
19C‐0195. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on 2019‐20 Deer Population Management 
Program 

 
93‐111 

 
19C‐0196. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on $50,000 Grant from the Illinois Department of 
Commerce and Economic Opportunity for Additional Parking at Rec Park 

 
112‐114 

 
19C‐0197. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for Hydrant and Valve Replacement 

 
115 

 
19C‐0198. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for Water Valve Replacement 

 
116 

 
19C‐0199. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Purchase of a New Public Works Truck 
with Plow and Spreader 

 
117 

 
19C‐0200. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Zoning Calendar No. 19SUB‐01, Request by 
T&C Enterprises for Final Plan and Plat of the Grandview Subdivision, 618 Gear 
Street  

 
118‐119 

 
19C‐0201. 

  
First Reading of an Ordinance Enacting and Adopting a Supplement to the Code 
of Ordinances for the City of Galena 

 
120 

 
19C‐0202. 

 
Warrants 

121‐130 

19C‐0203.  Alderpersons’ Comments   
19C‐0204.  City Administrator’s Report    
19C‐0205.  Mayor’s Report   
19C‐0206.  Adjournment   

Page 3 of 130



Page 4 of 4 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Grant Park Committee  Fri. May 17  9:00 A.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. May 27  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. June 6  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. June 12  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 

 
Please view the full City of Galena Calendar at www.cityofgalena.org  

 
Posted: Thursday, May 9, 2019 at 4:00 p.m.    Posted By: 

Page 4 of 130



Page 5 of 130



Page 6 of 130



Page 7 of 130



Page 8 of 130



Page 9 of 130



Regular Board Meeting  22 April 2019 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 22 APRIL 2019 
 

19C-0149 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 22 April 2019.  
 
19C-0150 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, 
Westemeier, Renner 
 
19C-0151 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
19C-0152 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
19C-0153 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
No reports.   
 
19C-0154 – CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
Lisa McCarthy, Northwest Illinois Economic Development, 104 N. Clark Lane – McCarthy 
reported they have been working with the corporate real estate agents regarding Honeywell.  
They plan to look at the building and assess the asking price.  In the meantime, the President of 
Intercept Illinois, a 2-year-old sales and marketing division, was given a tour.  The building is in 
excellent condition on the inside.  The State of Illinois has a unique relationship with some 
Japanese and German companies.  They have private people looking to expand in the United 
States.  They are hopeful a buyer can be found for the plant.  McCarthy advised she would keep 
the city updated on any progress.   
 
Presentation:  Mayor Renner recognized Jim Holman for his 18 years on the Zoning Board.   
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

Motion:    Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn as the City Council and reconvene as 
the Liquor Commission.            
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
19C-0155 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A LIQUOR LICENSE MANAGER 
APPLICATION BY STONEY CREEK INN, 940 GALENA SQUARE DRIVE, FOR JOAN T. 
HEBER 
 
Motion:    Hahn moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve the Liquor License Manager 
Application by Stoney Creek Inn for Joan T. Heber, 19C-0155.   
 
Discussion:  None.   

Page 10 of 130



Regular Board Meeting  22 April 2019 
 

 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
           
  The motion carried.  
 
Motion:    Hahn moved, seconded by Allendorf, to adjourn as the Liquor Commission and 
reconvene as the City Council.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  

 
CONSENT AGENDA CA19-8 

 
19C-0156 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
APRIL 8, 2019 AND THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF APRIL 15, 2019 
 
19C-0157 – APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FEVER RIVER TRIATHLON FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 
2:00 P.M. ON SEPTEMBER 14, 2019 AT DEPOT PARK 
 
19C-0158 – APPROVAL OF A TAXICAB BUSINESS LICENSE FOR A TO B CAB LLC 
 
19C-0159 – APPROVAL OF A REQUEST BY THE ILLINOIS SPORTS OWNERS 
ASSOCIATION FOR THE USE OF DEPOT PARK, THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2020 FOR A 
TRIUMPH CAR SHOW 
 
19C-0160 – APPROVAL OF UTILITY ACCOUNT WRITE-OFFS OF $575.96 FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR MAY 1, 2018 TO APRIL 30, 2019 
 
Motion:    Allendorf moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve Consent Agenda, CA19-8 as 
presented.           
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

19C-0140 – SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING THE ZONING MAP TO CHANGE AN 11.816 ACRE PARCEL (22-200-133-00), 
THE GRANDVIEW SUBDIVISION ON GEAR STREET FROM LIMITED AGRICULTURAL TO 
LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve the second reading of an ordinance 
amending the Zoning Map to change an 11.816-acre parcel (22-200-133-00), the Grandview 
Subdivision on Gear Street from Limited Agricultural to Low Density Residential, 19C-0140.   
 
Discussion:  The lots are located within the City Limits.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 

Page 11 of 130



Regular Board Meeting  22 April 2019 
 

  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
19C-0142 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 
OPERATING BUDGET 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Operating 
Budget as presented.   
 
Discussion:  Hahn requested that the donation to the ARC be raised to $20,000.  Council 
discussed and agreed to keep it at $15,000 for this year.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Renner  
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.     
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
19C-0161 – MONTHLY WATER AND SEWER OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT 
FROM VEOLIA 
 
Matt Trotter reported there were no main breaks in March; however, the lost water has increased 
again.  The leak survey found 15 potential areas.  One leak has been repaired which dropped 
daily production by 50,000 gallons.  There are five more leaks confirmed that are either service 
lines, hydrants or mains.  They will be working to knock those off the list.   
 
Hydrant flushing will begin in May.  They are following up on the training on the polymer feed.  
The factory rep has provided good information.  The feed will be repaired which will feed less 
chemicals and save money.   
 
Approximately 26 loads of solids have been applied to fields.  They will continue to run the press 
and, if solids are generated, they will try to haul before field work begins.   
 
They continue to work on water infiltration.  Once the river goes down, they will do camera work 
to determine where the water is getting in.   
 
Matt Oldenburg and Jonathan Miller assisted with going through the line on Dewey Avenue 
locating manholes and putting them on the GPS.  They will take care of those that were under 
water once the river goes down.   
 
Maintenance on the jetting and collection system will be done in May.   
 
19C-0162 – QUARTERLY REPORT FROM THE GREATER GALENA MARKETING INITIATIVE 
(GGMI) 
 
Rose Noble gave the quarterly report from the Greater Galena Marketing Initiative.   
 
Noble highlighted the following:   
 

 Total Interactions in March    4,160,990 
 Unique Visitors to the Website          121,688 
 Visitors Serviced by the Welcome Center       13,454 

 
A networking event/tourism night will be held on Tuesday, May 7 at the Train Depot.   
 

Page 12 of 130



Regular Board Meeting  22 April 2019 
 

Tax collection dollars for B & B’s and Air B & B’s jumped quite a bit from 2018.  Noble feels the 
City has done a great job regulating them.  Large lodging has been level as well.   
 
Noble feels they are seeing more of a trend towards Air B & B’s.  She noted this isn’t just 
happening in our City.  We are late getting in the game.   
 
19C-0163 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A CONTRACT FOR THE GALENA 
RIVER CANOE AND KAYAK LAUNCH 
 
The following bid was received: 
 
CONTRACTOR BASE BID ALTERNATE BID 
  
Louie’s Trenching Service $127,438.50 $5.00
 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve a contract with Louie’s Trenching 
Service in the amount of $127,438.50, contingent on funding from IDNR and CDFG for the 
Galena River Canoe and Kayak Launch.     
 
Discussion:  Moran advised the Community Fund of Galena (CDFG) is willing to make up the 
difference between the original amount and the bid without any conditions.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
19C-0164 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE DONATION OF 
PROPERTY IN THE GATEWAY PARK SUBDIVISION 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the first reading and waive the 
second reading of an Ordinance accepting the donation of property in the Gateway Park 
Subdivision.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
19C-0165 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Allendorf moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the Warrants as presented, 19C-
0165.     
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
19C-0166 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 

Page 13 of 130



Regular Board Meeting  22 April 2019 
 

Thank You - Bernstein thanked Lisa McCarthy for coming back to provide information on 
Honeywell.   
 
Well Wishes – Bernstein advised she will be absent at the next meeting.  She wished Charlie 
Fach well and welcomes Marc McCoy to the council.     
 
Glass Recycling – Bernstein thanked the council for keeping the glass recycling in the budget.   
 
Write-Offs – Westemeier thanked Deb Price and whoever else is involved with write-offs.  They 
have done a good job going after people getting money back.   
 
Thank You – Allendorf thanked those who supported the donation to Northwest Illinois Economic 
Development.  He was happy to hear from McCarthy.   
 
Farewell – Fach thanked staff and council for their support over the years.  Being on the Council 
has been a great experience and honor.  He hopes he has done the City well.  Hahn thanked 
Fach for his service.   
 
Air B & B’s – Hahn feels the City needs to watch the trend on Air B & B’s in this area.  We need 
to continue to track down those that have opened illegally and bring them into compliance.   
 
Parking – Hahn feels parking in the downtown is going to be a problem.   
 
Thanks – Kieffer thanked Charlie Fach for his service.   
 
Budget – Kieffer stated he is glad the budget passed without too much argument.   
 
19C-0167 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Vacation Rentals – Moran advised the Galena Gazette ran a great article on the subject.  The 
article really pertained to the county.  In terms of vacation rentals operating illegally in the City, we 
are not aware of any.  They are being monitored constantly.  Staff feels we have a tightly 
managed system around vacation rental businesses.   
 
Thanks – Moran thanked Jim Sullivan and Alex Phillips for the donated land in the Gateway Park 
Subdivision.  It will compliment Gateway Park nicely.  
 
Paper Shred – Moran reminded Council that Friday, April 26th, the City will be offering paper 
shredding open to the public from 9 a.m. to 11 a.m.  This is in conjunction with the City’s annual 
shredding.  Moran thanked staff for organizing the event.   
 
19C-0168 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Thank you – Mayor Renner thanked Charlie Fach for his years of service.  They met on the 
Zoning Board in 1998 so they have been sitting at the same table for quite some time.   
 
Thank you - Mayor Renner thanked Lisa McCarthy and Rose Noble for their presentations.   
 
Vacation Rentals – Mayor Renner recommended staff keep on top of it.   
 
Budget – Mayor Renner thanked council and staff for the budget.   
 
Boy Scouts – Mayor Renner requested a Council member represent the City at the elks at noon 
on Saturday as he will be out of town.  Alderman Hahn agreed to be there.   
 
19C-0169 - ADJOURNMENT 
 

Page 14 of 130



Regular Board Meeting  22 April 2019 
 

Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
   
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 15 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 29, 2019 

RE:    Employee Appointments 
 

Under Illinois law, both the mayor and the city council are granted powers related to the appointment 
of city officers or employees.  The powers are summarized in the following excerpt from the state 
statute:  “The mayor…with the advice and consent of the city council…may appoint…officers necessary 
to carry into effect the powers conferred upon municipalities” [65 ILCS 5/3.1‐30‐5(a)]. 
 
By prior custom and practice all city department heads and select other employees are appointed 
annually for one‐year terms at the first council meeting in May.  The mayor with the advice and 
consent of the council makes the appointments.  I am writing to provide you with Mayor Renner’s list 
of appointments. 
 
Mayor Renner proposes the following appointments for the period beginning May 14, 2019 through 
May 11, 2020 when new appointments are made. 
 

 City Attorney, Joe Nack 

 City Administrator, Mark Moran  

 Police Chief, Lori Huntington 

 City Engineer, Andy Lewis 

 Zoning Administrator, Matt Oldenburg 

 Building Official, Jonathan Miller 

 Public Works Director, Jim Rigdon 

 Finance Director, Cindy Pepple 

 Facilities Manager, Janelle Keeffer  

 Fire Chief, Randy Beadle 

 Assistant Fire Chief, Robert Connelly   

 Director of the Fire Prevention Bureau, Randy Beadle 

 Fire Inspector, Brett Temperly  

 Deputy City Clerk, Debra Price  

 Deputy Building Official, Matt Oldenburg  

 Electrical Inspector, Jonathan Miller 

 Rental Housing Inspector, Brett Temperly  
 
If you have any questions about the appointment process or the performance of any of the 
appointed employees, please let me know.     

 

Page 16 of 130



Page 17 of 130



Galena-Jo Daviess County Historical Society & Museum, 211 S. Bench St., Galena, Illinois  61036 

                                     Phone 815-777-9129           

                    www.galenahistory.org       info@galenahistorymuseum.org 

Nancy Breed 

   Executive Director 

 
 

Board of Directors 
 

  Christine Harris 

President 

 

Bonnielynn Kreiser 

Vice-President 

  

Bryon Taylor     

Treasurer            

 

Kris Chapman     

Secretary 

 

 Mike Blaum 

 

Bill Butts 

 

Steve Coates 

 

Alice Ericksen 

 

Dawn Freese 

 

Kathleen Morgan 

 

Cory Ritterbusch 

 

Frances Rivoire 

 

MEMO:  April 24, 2019 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Terry Renner and the Galena City Council 

 

FROM: Nancy Breed, Executive Director of the Galena-JDC Historical Society 

 

RE:  Use of Old City Cemetery for June 8 & 9, 2019 Cemetery Walk 

 

The Historical Society respectfully requests permission to use Galena’s Old City  

Cemetery for it’s 26th Annual Cemetery Walk from 2 to 4:30pm on Saturday and  

Sunday, June 8 and 9, 2019. 

 

The popular Walk is an historical and theatrical tribute to Galenians from all walks of 

life who are buried in the oldest of Galena cemeteries. Using local actors, the event 

features first-person stories of people who lived during Galena’s earliest days. It is not 

a ghost tour; rather, it celebrates the lives of Galena’s settlers. 

 

Due to the ongoing construction on Gear Street, we feel it necessary to relocate from 

Greenwood Cemetery to Old City Cemetery. We were last at Old City in 2006. I began    

having conversations with the City Engineer in late 2018 to assess Gear Street access 

to Greenwood Cemetery. It has become clear that it would be best for all parties to 

avoid having an event in that area in 2019. 

 

 This change of venue will be an opportunity to celebrate the recent improvements to 

Old City Cemetery. The research Mr. Glick has provided on individuals buried there 

has been very helpful to our scripts. 

 

 Thank you for your consideration. 

 

Page 18 of 130



Galena-Jo Daviess County Historical Society & Museum, 211 S. Bench St., Galena, Illinois  61036 

                                     Phone 815-777-9129        Fax 815-777-9131            

                    www.galenahistorymuseum.org       info@galenahistorymuseum.org 

Nancy Breed 

   Executive Director 

 
 

Board of Directors 

 

  Christine Harris 

President 

 

Bonnielynn Kreiser 

Vice President 

 

 Kris Chapman 

 Secretary  

 

 

Bryon Taylor 

Treasurer 

 

 

Mike Blaum 

 

Bill Butts 

 

Steve Coates 

 

Dawn Freese 
 

 

Kathleen Morgan 

 

Cory Ritterbusch 

 

Frances Rivoire 

 

MEMO: May 7, 2019 
 
 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor Renner and the City of Galena Councilpersons 
 
 

 
 
FROM: 
 

 Dan McCarthy, Event Co-Chair Denise Spielman, Event Co-Chair 
 Past Director of Marketing  Retail Manager 

 

 
RE:  “Heroes for History” Event Authorization: Sat., Sept. 7, 2019 
 
The Galena-Jo Daviess County Historical Society has started planning for the  
third annual Heroes for History Stair Challenge, scheduled for Saturday, Sept. 7, 
2019. Our first stop in the planning process is to, once again, extend our thanks to 
the City for its support with previous years’ successful Stair Challenge events. We 
come to you today to seek your consent to move ahead with plans for the 2019   
version.  
 
Our goals are to increase the number of overall participants while attracting more 
first responders from around the Midwest. Our event committee respectfully      
requests the City’s approval for the following items: 
 
1) Permission to use the 100 block of Green Street, between the Post Office and 

City Hall, and City Hall parking lot, as the pre-run and post-run staging area, 
the same as last year: 6 a.m. to noon.  

 
2) The course will be the same as last year. The start would be at the Green Street 

stairs on Bench Street; go north on Prospect all the way to Hill Street (bypassing 
the Washington Street stairs); east on Hill down to Bench; then south on Bench 
back to the Green Street stairs. Participants will run 7 laps or walk 1 lap. We 
once again ask that the city agree to close Bench and Prospect streets, and the 
south side of Hill Street, to traffic from 6 a.m. to noon. At least half of Bench and 
Prospect streets will be reopened after the runners are off the course. The streets 
will be opened full to traffic as soon as volunteers can remove barriers and 
cones from the pavement. 

 
 

Page 19 of 130



Heroes for History/City of Galena Request 

Page Two 

 

 

 

As you know, the first three years of Heroes for History saw no complaints or     

issues. And, we were able to work around a wedding at St. Michael’s Catholic 

Church during a previous year’s race. We anticipate taking the same precautionary 

and communications steps as previous years.  

 

Thank you for your consideration. We are available to respond to any questions 

you may have about the event, now and in the future. 

Page 20 of 130



Page 21 of 130



Page 22 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer   
 
DATE:      7 May 2019 
 
RE:    Screening Building at Wastewater Treatment Plant 
    Replacement of Differential Level Transducer 
 
 
In recent months there has been a problem with operation of the differential level transducer 
at the bar screen located at the wastewater treatment plant. The unit has now failed and needs 
to be replaced. 
 
We obtained a quote from our usual supplier in the region for this type of equipment – see 
attached from L W Allen for $6,273.95. This item was included in the new budget under sewer 
equipment replacement fund – item 52.43.850.15. 
   
I wish to recommend the City Council approve the quote from L W Allen for $6,273.95 to 
replace the differential level transducer at the bar screen.  
 
 

Page 23 of 130



Page 24 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer   
 
DATE:      7 May 2019 
 
RE:    Video Camera for Sewer Pipe Inspection 
    Approval of Quotes     
     
 
This year we budgeted $10,000 (item 52.43.850.07) for a video camera to inspect sanitary 
sewer pipes. Two quotes were obtained for a digital camera as detailed below: 
 

Company  Amount $ 

Allan J Coleman Company  10,641.43 

USA Blue Book  11,927.70 

 
After discussing the two options with Matt Trotter of Veolia we believe the quote from Allan J 
Coleman is the best value option. This unit includes a capability to determine the location of the 
camera in the pipe and produce digital recordings that can be viewed on an office computer. 
 
I recommend the City Council approves the quote of $10,641.43 from Allan J Coleman Company 
to purchase a sewer line video camera.  

 

Page 25 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer   
 
DATE:      7 May 2019 
 
RE:    Refrigerated Samplers at Wastewater Treatment Plant 
    Approval of Quotes     
     
 
This year we budgeted $19,500 (item 52.43.850.15) for equipment replacement which included 
a two refrigerated samplers at the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). Two quotes were 
obtained as detailed below: 
 

Company  Amount $ 

Gasvoda & Associates  13,180.20 

Hach  8,658.36 

 
After discussing the two options with Matt Trotter of Veolia we believe the quote from Hach is 
the best value option. These units are automated devices that collect samples of wastewater 
entering the plant (influent) and treated water exiting the plant (effluent). 
 
I recommend the City Council approves the quote of $8,658.36.43 from Hach to purchase two 
refrigerated samplers.  

 
 

Page 26 of 130



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 
FROM:   Matt Oldenburg, Deputy City Engineer  
 
DATE:   7 May 2019 
 
RE:  Concrete Testing – Compression Machine  
   
 
The Engineering Department, since 2017, conducts quality assurance (QA) concrete testing for 
publicly funded projects.  This is part of the IDOT Quality Management Program (QMP) to 
ensure quality materials are installed.   
 
Currently, the City samples fresh concrete at the site to measure temperature, air content and 
slump.  In addition, fresh samples are molded into cylinders that are later broken to determine 
the compressive strength of the concrete sample at various ages of curing (7, 14 and 28 days 
old). 
 
The County Highway Department in Hanover has the nearest IDOT certified compression 
machine.  We currently transport the cylinder samples to Hanover, each time we test, to store 
and break them.  This budget cycle, the City approved the purchase of a compression machine 
in order to eliminate the logistics and cost of taking samples to Hanover.   
 
Two quotes were received from manufacturers of compression machines, rated at 250,000 lbs 
capacity: 
 

Company Amount $ 
Test Mark Industries – CM-2500 Series Compression Testing Machine 9,925 
Forney – F-250B-FL Compression Testing Machine  9,947 

 
After Staff review, the Forney machine presented better capabilities with the control device 
and data collection.  Staff recommends purchase of the Forney machine for $9,947.  The budget 
line items to cover the cost are:  Engineering/Office Supplies (01.45.651.01) - $8,500; 
Engineering/Consulting Services (01.45.532.00) - $1,447.  Please let me know if you have any 
questions. 

Page 27 of 130



CITY OF GALENA AGREEMENT WITH THE  
GALENA ART AND RECREATION CENTER 

 
 
This agreement in entered into this _______ day of _______, 2019 between the City of  
Galena, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, herein after referred to as City, and The 
Galena Art and Recreation Center, an Illinois Non for Profit Organization, herein after 
referred to as ARC. The parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The ARC agrees to provide youth sports services to members of the Galena 
Community, which services are not provided by the City.    

2. The parties agree the services provided by the ARC constitute a public service 
which benefits the citizens of Galena, Illinois. 

3. The ARC will supervise all activities and agrees to hold the City harmless for any 
liability or injuries that may occur from such activities. 

4. The ARC shall be solely responsible for the rules, regulations, and supervision of 
activities. 

5. The ARC shall be solely responsible for hiring and compensation of all 
employees. 

6. The City shall pay fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) to the ARC to be used 
offset the costs of providing youth sports activities. The parties agree the 
payment of the City is a one‐time payment and the City is not obligated to make 
any payments in the future. 

7. The ARC shall provide to the City by no later than December 31, 2019 a financial 
statement showing the entire revenues and costs incurred in administering their 
programs. 

8. That for purpose of this agreement notice shall be sent to: 
 
                          The Galena Art and Recreation Center 
                          Attention: Dave Decker 
                          413 S. Bench Street 
                          Galena, IL 61036 
    executivedirector@galenaarc.org  
 
                          The City of Galena 
                          Attention: Mark Moran 
                          101 Green Street 
                          Galena, IL 61036 

mmmoran@cityofgalena.org  
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on behalf 
of each body by their duly elected official empowered to so execute this document as 
the date first above written. 
 

Page 28 of 130



 
GALENA ART AND RECREATION CENTER 
An Illinois Non for Profit Corporation 
 
BY:____________________________  DATE: __________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST:________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF GALENA 
An Illinois Municipal Corporation 
 
 
BY:____________________________  DATE: __________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST________________________ 
 

Page 29 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator  

DATE:    May 7, 2019 

RE:    Water Tower Agreement   
 
 
Midwest Medical Center has requested to mount communication equipment on the Franklin 
Street water tower.  The equipment will allow wireless communication between the hospital 
and the nursing home at the former hospital site.   
 
Our staff and Veolia staff have worked with the communication contractor to develop an 
acceptable plan for the installation.  The plan and the proposed agreement are attached.  The 
agreement is similar to those we have with cellular companies.   
 
Since the hospital is a not‐for‐profit, we propose an annual lease amount of $1.00.  With the 
uncertainty of the future of the Franklin Street water tower, the proposed agreement has a 
term of one year.  The City has the option of not renewing the agreement for a second year by 
giving notice 60 days before the expiration.  
 
Please contact me if you have any questions.       
      
Thank you. 
     
  
 

 

Page 30 of 130



1 
 

FACILITIES SPACE LEASE 
 
 
  This Lease is made and entered into the _____ day of __________, 2019 by and 
between, City of Galena, 101 Green Street, Galena, IL 61036, hereinafter referred to as 
“Landlord” and Midwest Medical Center, an Illinois 501(c)(3) not‐for‐profit organization 
whose  principal  address  is  1  Medical  Center  Drive,  Galena,  Illinois  61036‐8118, 
hereinafter referred to as “Tenant”. 
 
  WHEREAS,  Landlord  is  the  owner  of  a water  tower  (the  “Tower”),  located  at 
1011 Franklin Street, Galena, in the County of Jo Daviess, State of Illinois, as depicted on 
the  Exhibit  attached  hereto,  and  marked  Exhibit  A,  and  incorporated  herein  by 
reference,  a  portion  of  which  has  been  identified  as  a  suitable  site  for  a 
telecommunications  facility, hereinafter  referred  to  as  the  “Premises,” designated on 
said Exhibit A; and 
 
  WHEREAS, Tenant desires to place communications equipment in an equipment 
shelter on the referenced premises to provide services to its customers. 
 
  In  consideration  of  the  mutual  promises,  conditions,  and  other  good  and 
valuable  consideration  of  the  parties  hereto,  it  is  hereby  covenanted  and  agreed  as 
follows: 
   

1. Grant of License.   
 
  (a) Landlord hereby grants to Tenant the following described Premises:  

 
(i) Antenna Space. Sufficient space on  the Tower,  in Galena, 

County of  Jo Daviess, State of  Illinois,  for  the placing and 
affixing  of  a wireless  communication  cable  and  antenna.  
The  antenna  specifications  are  described  in  Exhibit  A, 
“Franklin  Street  Water  Tower  Equipment  Installation”, 
attached hereto and made part hereof. 

 
(ii) Ground Space. Sufficient space on  the northwest exterior 

wall  of  the  pump  building  to  mount  base  station 
equipment  (“Tenant’s Ground Equipment”).     The ground 
space  and  equipment  specifications  are  described  in 
Exhibit  A,  “Franklin  Street  Water  Tower  Equipment 
Installation”, attached hereto and made part hereof. 

 
Landlord  represents  and  warrants  that  it  is  the  title  holder  of  the 
premises  and  has  authority  to  enter  into  this  agreement  and  the 

Page 31 of 130



2 
 

premises are  free and clear of encumbrances  that would  interfere with 
Tenant’s contemplated use of the premises.   

 
(b) During the term of this Agreement, Tenant and its agents, engineers, 

surveyors and other representatives will have the right to enter upon 
the Premises, with  the  consent and  supervision of  the  Landlord,  to 
inspect,  examine,  and  conduct  engineering  tests  or  studies  of  the 
Premises  (collectively  the  “Tests”),  to  apply  for  and  obtain  licenses, 
permits, approvals, or other  relief required of or deemed necessary 
or appropriate at Tenant’s sole discretion for  its use of the Premises 
and  include  without  limitation  applications  for    zoning  variances, 
zoning  ordinances,  amendments,  special  use  permits,  and 
construction  permits  (collectively  referred  to  as  “Governmental 
Approvals”),   and otherwise to do those things on or off the Premises 
that, in the opinion of Tenant, are necessary in Tenant’s sole discretion 
to determine the physical condition of the Premises, the environmental 
history  of  the  Premises,  Landlord’s  title  to  the  Premises,  and  the 
feasibility or suitability of the Premises for Tenant’s Permitted Use, all 
at Tenant’s expense.  Tenant will not be liable to Landlord or any third 
party  on  account  of  any  pre‐existing  defect  or  condition  on  or with 
respect  to  the  Premises, whether  or  not  such  defect  or  condition  is 
disclosed by Tenant’s inspection. 

   
2. Use of the Premises.  Tenant shall be entitled to the non‐exclusive use of 

the  Premises  to  install,  operate,  and  maintain  thereon  two  directional 
radio  arrays  and  a  base  station  including  related  system  networking, 
station control, and performance monitoring  functions, but  for no other 
use or purpose.   Tenant’s use of  the Premises  shall at all  times  comply 
with and conform to all laws and regulations applicable thereto. 

 
3. Privileges  Appurtenant.    Landlord  hereby  confers  upon  Tenant  the 

following  Privileges  appurtenant  to  the  Premises,  which  shall  be 
irrevocable for the duration hereof: 

 
(a) To  extend  and  connect  lines  for  signal  carriage  between  Tenant’s 

radios and Tenant’s antennas.   Where said  lines are attached to the 
Tower they shall match the color of the Tower and shall not interfere 
with any functions of the tower, including the safe use of the ladders 
or walkways.  Said lines shall be buried in conduit between the Tower 
and the equipment building; 

 
(b) To extend and connect  lines for electric and telephone utility service 

between Tenant’s base  station and  suitable utility  company  service 
connection points.  Said lines shall be buried in conduit; 

Page 32 of 130



3 
 

 
(c) To  traverse  common  areas  of  the  water  tower  as  reasonably 

necessary  to  accomplish  Tenant’s  purposes  contemplated  in  this 
Lease  upon  prior  notice  and  so  long  as  Landlord’s  business  is  not 
unreasonably interfered with. 

 
4. Premises Delivered As Is.  The Premises are delivered to Tenant and being 

leased “as  is” and Landlord makes no representation or warranty of any 
kind, expressed or  implied, with respect to the condition of the Premises 
related to fitness or suitability for the particular purpose contemplated by 
the  Tenant  for  use  of  the  Premises.    TO  THE  MAXIMUM  EXTENT 
PERMITTED  BY  APPLICABLE  LAW,  LANDLORD HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND 
TENANT WAIVES THE BENEFIT OF, ANY AND ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, 
INCLUDING  IMPLIED  WARRANTIES  OF  HABITABILITY,  FITNESS  OR 
SUITABILITY FOR TENANT’S PURPOSE.   TENANT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT 
NEITHER  LANDLORD NOR ANY AGENT OF  LANDLORD HAS MADE ANY 
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANT WITH RESPECT  TO  THE PREMISES OR 
WITH RESPECT TO THE SUITABILITY OF SAME FOR THE PURPOSE HEREIN 
INTENDED.   BY OCCUPYING THE PREMISES, TENANT SHALL BE DEEMED 
TO HAVE ACCEPTED THE SAME AS SUITABLE FOR THE PURPOSE HEREIN 
INTENDED. 

 
5. Alterations.    During  the  Lease  term,  Tenant  may,  at  its  expense,  make 

such  improvements on the Premises as  it deems necessary from time to 
time  for  the  operation  of  the  facility,  provided  however,  that  such 
improvement shall not materially adversely affect the structural integrity, 
repair,  maintenance  of  the  Premises  or  the  Landlord’s  use  of  the 
Premises.    Such  improvements or  alterations  shall be performed  at  the 
Tenant’s  sole  cost,  free  from  liens,  in  a  good  and workmanlike manner 
complying  with  applicable  codes,  and  according  to  detailed  plans  and 
specifications  which  have  received  the  prior  written  approval  of 
Landlord’s  designated  representative,  which  approval  shall  not 
unreasonably be withheld. 

 
6. Term of Agreement.   This agreement shall continue in force and effect for 

a period of one (1) year from and after the date of this agreement, unless 
otherwise extended pursuant to Paragraph 7 herein.  

 
7. Extensions of Term.   Tenant may elect  to extend  the  term of  this  lease 

upon  the  same  conditions  and  provisions  herein  contained  for  one  (1) 
year,  by  giving  written  notice  to  Landlord  of  Tenant’s  exercise  of  this 
option  at  least  sixty  (60)  days  before  the  expiration  of  the  term  then 
present at the time of such notice, and all references in this Lease to the 
“term” of this Lease shall be deemed to  include the original term hereof 

Page 33 of 130



4 
 

and any and all extensions thereof pursuant to this Section.   The Landlord 
may  elect not  to  extend  the  term of  the  lease  at  the end of  the  initial 
lease term or at the end of any Extension Period by giving written notice 
to  Tenant  of  Landlord's  exercise  of  this  option  at  least  sixty  (60)  days 
before the expiration of the term then present at the time of such notice. 

 
8. Payment.   As compensation  for use of Landlord’s property, Tenant  shall 

pay rent to Landlord in the amount of $1.00 per year.   
 
 

9. Utilities.    Tenant  shall  ensure  that  utility  services  are  accessible  and 
available  at  the  Premises  for  Tenant’s  intended  use.    Tenant  shall  be 
responsible  for  the  separate metering, billing, and payment of  its utility 
services consumed by its operations. 

 
10. Taxes.  
 

a. Real Estate Taxes.     The Landlord  is a tax exempt entity.   Should 
any City of Galena ordinance or State of Illinois statute require the 
property  to  be  subject  to  real  estate  taxes  or  assessments,  the 
Tenant shall be  liable  for  the Tenant's proportionate share of all 
such real estate taxes and assessments on a prorata square  foot 
basis as the area of the Premises bear in relation to the property 
with respect to the land and for all taxes imposed on the full value 
of the Tenant's improvements constructed on the land. 

 
b. Personal  Property  Taxes.    The  Tenant  shall  pay,  before 

delinquency,  any  municipal,  county,  state  and  federal  taxes 
assessed  against  any  interest  of  the  Tenant  in  the  Premises  or 
assessed against the equipment if applicable. 

 
11. Option to Terminate.   Tenant shall have the unilateral right to terminate 

this  Lease  at  any  time  by  giving written  notice  to  Landlord  of  Tenant’s 
exercise of this option.   In the event of termination, Tenant shall remove 
all equipment from the Landlord’s property and repair any damage. 

 
12. Access.   So  long as Landlord’s business and  that of Landlord’s  tenants  is 

not  unreasonably  interfered  with,  Tenant  shall  have  access  to  the 
Premises  at  all  hours  of  the  day  and  night,  subject  to  such  reasonable 
rules and regulations as Landlord may impose.  

 
13. Compliance  with  Laws.    Tenant  shall,  at  Tenant’s  cost  and  expense, 

comply  with all federal, state, county or local laws, rules, regulations and 
ordinances now or hereafter enacted by any governmental authority or 

Page 34 of 130



5 
 

administrative  agencies  having  jurisdiction  over  the  Premises  and 
Tenant’s operations thereupon. 

 
14. Water  Tower  Maintenance.  Landlord  reserves  the  right  to  determine 

when  the water  tower subject  to  this Lease shall be  repainted,  repaired 
replaced, or removed. Landlord shall notify Tenant at least sixty (60) days 
in advance of the date when the water tower to which Tenant's facilities 
are attached  is scheduled  to be painted, repaired, replaced or removed.    
The painting contractor will bid on  the cost of painting  the water  tower 
without the Tenant’s antennas.  The contractor will then bid on the cost of 
painting  the water  tower with  the Tenant's antennas  left  in place.   The 
contractor  will  then  proceed  to  paint  the  water  tower  with  Tenant's 
antennas left in place.  Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for the difference 
between  the  two  bids.    If  the water  tower  is  damaged  for  any  reason, 
other  than  a  negligent  or  wrongful  act  or  omission  of  Tenant  or  its 
contractors,  so  as  to  render  it  substantially  unusable  for  Tenant’s 
intended use, rent shall abate for such period until Landlord, at Landlord’s 
expense, restores the water tower to  its condition prior to such damage; 
provided, however,  in the event Landlord fails to repair the water tower 
within  seven  (7)  days  following  the  date  of  such  damage,  Tenant  shall 
have  the  right  to  terminate  this Lease by giving Landlord written notice 
thereof, as long as Tenant has not resumed operations upon the Premises.  

 
15. Aviation Hazard Marking.  Landlord agrees to be solely responsible for full 

compliance,  at  all  times,  with  the  water  tower  marking,  lighting, 
maintenance,  inspection,  recording,  registration,  and  notification 
requirements  of  the  Federal  Communications  Commission  and  the 
Federal Aviation Administration.   

 
  17.  FCC and FAA Tower Registration.  Landlord warrants to Tenant that the  

water  tower  has  been  registered  by  the  water  tower  owner  with  the 
Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) and/or the Federal Aviation 
Administration  (“FAA”)  if  required  by  the  FCC  and/or  the  FAA.  
Additionally, Landlord warrants to Tenant that in the event the FCC or the 
FAA requires the water tower to be registered during the  initial term of 
this lease or any extensions thereof, Landlord shall ensure that the tower 
owner  shall  take  all  necessary  actions  to  register  the  tower.    Landlord 
shall provide Tenant with a copy of the FCC and FAA tower registration. 

 
18.       Mutual  Indemnification.    Tenant  shall  indemnify,  hold  Landlord 

  harmless  from and against any  loss, damage, or  injury caused by, or on 
  behalf of, or through the fault of the Tenant which may arise out of or be 
  caused by the construction, maintenance, presence, use, relocation or  

Page 35 of 130



6 
 

removal  of  the  equipment  on  the  Premises  or  by  any  negligent  act  or 
willful  misconduct  of  Tenant  on  or  in  the  Premises.    Landlord  shall 
indemnify and hold Tenant harmless from and against any loss, damage, 
or injury caused by, or on behalf of, or through the fault of the Landlord.  
Notwithstanding  the  above,  Landlord’s  damages  and  right  to 
indemnification  against  the  Landlord  shall be  limited  to  the  amount of 
outstanding Lease payments due and owing under this Lease agreement.  
Tenant shall not be entitled to any damages  for economic  loss, damage 
or  injury caused by or through the fault of the Landlord.  Nothing in this 
Article  shall  require  a  party  to  indemnify  the  other  party  against  such 
other party’s own willful or negligent misconduct. 

 
19. Insurance.   Tenant shall continuously maintain in full force and effect a  

policy of commercial general liability insurance with limits of One Million 
Dollars  ($1,000,000)  covering  Tenant’s  work  and  operations  upon  the 
Premises.    Tenant  shall  provide  a  Certificate  of  Insurance  to  Landlord.  
This  insurance shall be maintained during the term or any renewal term 
of  this  agreement.    Said  insurance  shall  name  the  Landlord  as  an 
additional  named  insured.    Landlord  shall  continuously maintain  in  full 
force  and  effect  a  policy  of  casualty  insurance  covering  the  full 
replacement value of Landlord’s property demised herein to Tenant, and 
Landlord  covenants  to  apply  all  proceeds  from  such  policy  to  repair, 
restore, and replace said property if it is damaged or destroyed. 

 
20.     Interference.   
 

(a)  Tenant’s  installation,  operation,  and  use  of  its  transmission  facilities 
under  this  Lease  shall  not  damage  or  interfere  in  any  way  with  the 
Landlord’s  water  tower  operations,  related  repair  and  maintenance 
activities.   Landlord, at all times during this Lease, reserves the right to 
take  any  action  it  deems  necessary,  in  its  sole  discretion,  to  repair, 
maintain,  alter  or  improve  the  leased  Premises  and  to  temporarily 
interfere with Tenant’s leasehold improvements as may be necessary in 
order  to  carry  out  any  of  such  activities.    Landlord  agrees  to  give 
reasonable advance notice of such activities to Tenant and to reasonably 
cooperate  with  Tenant  to  carry  out  such  activities  with  a  minimum 
amount of interference with Tenant’s transmission operations. 

 
(b)  Landlord shall not guarantee to Tenant exclusive use or non‐interference 

with  Tenant’s  transmission operations, provided, however,  that  in  the 
event  any  other  party,  except  a  governmental  unit,  office,  or  agency 
requests  permission  to  place  any  type  of  additional  antenna  or 
transmission  facility on  the water  tower or  the property after Tenant, 
this paragraph will govern  the determination of whether such antenna 

Page 36 of 130



7 
 

or  transmission  facility  will  interfere  with  Tenant’s  transmission 
operations.    If  Landlord  receives  any  such  request,  it  shall  submit  the 
proposal  to  Tenant  for  review of non‐interference.    Tenant  shall have 
thirty  days  following  receipt  of  said  proposal  to  make  any  objections 
thereto, and failure to make any objection within said thirty‐day period 
shall be deemed  consent by  Tenant  to  the  installation of  antennas or 
transmission  facilities pursuant  to said proposal.   Any dispute between 
Tenant and a Third party regarding the proposed additional  installation 
and  its potential  for  interference with Tenant’s  transmission operation 
shall  be  resolved  by  submitting  the  issue  for  decision  to  binding 
arbitration  in accordance with  the  rules and practices of  the American 
Arbitration  Association  mutually  agreed  upon  by  the  Third  Party  and 
Tenant, whose decision  regarding  interference  shall be binding on  the 
parties  hereto  and  whose  expense  shall  be  borne  equally  by  both 
parties.  

 
(c) Tenant  shall  be  responsible,  at  its  own  cost,  to  provide  technical 

specifications for the telecommunications equipment to be  installed, to 
any existing carrier located on the Premises.  The technical specifications 
provided  shall  include  any  specifications  reasonably  requested  by  any 
existing carrier.  An existing carrier shall have 30 days from receipt of the 
proposal to approve or make any objections thereto.  Failure to approve 
or  make  any  objection  within  the  30‐day  period  shall  be  deemed 
consent  by  the  existing  carrier  to  the  installation  of  the  equipment.  
Should an existing carrier object to the proposed installation by Tenant, 
Tenant  and  the  existing  carrier(s)  shall  submit  the  dispute  to  binding 
arbitration  in accordance with  the  rules and practices of  the American 
Arbitration Association and whose expense shall be borne equally by all 
parties. 

 
21.    Opportunity to Cure Defaults.  If Landlord or Tenant fails to comply with 

any non‐monetary provision of this Lease which the other party claims to 
be  a  default  hereof,  the  party  making  such  claim  shall  serve  written 
notice  of  such  default  upon  the  defaulting  party,  whereupon  a  grace 
period  of  30  days  shall  commence  to  run  during  which  the  defaulting 
party  shall undertake and diligently pursue a cure of  the default.   Such 
grace period  shall automatically be extended  for an additional 30 days, 
provided  the  defaulting  party makes  a  good  faith  showing  that  efforts 
toward a cure are continuing.  

 
  23.  Transferability of Tenant’s  Interest.   Tenant shall be entitled  to  transfer 

Tenant’s  interest  under  this  Lease,  in  whole  but  not  in  part,  and  to 
delegate all of Tenant’s obligations hereunder, without  the necessity of 
obtaining Landlord’s consent, in connection with the transfer of Tenant’s 

Page 37 of 130



8 
 

FCC radio station authorization, and to ensure that the named holder of 
Tenant’s  interest  hereunder  may  read  consistently  with  the  named 
holder of such radio station authorization. Any other assignment of this 
Lease  by  Tenant  shall  require  Landlord’s  prior  written  consent,  which 
consent shall not unreasonably be withheld, and hence shall remain fully 
liable for performance hereunder as if such transfer had not occurred. 

 
  24.  Subleasing.  Tenant shall not sublet the Premises or any portion thereof. 
 
  25.  Execution  of  Other  Instruments.    Landlord  agrees  to  execute, 

acknowledge,  and  deliver  to  Tenant  other  instruments  respecting  the 
Premises, as Tenant may reasonably request from time to time: provided 
that  any  such  instruments  are  merely  in  furtherance  of,  and  do  not 
expand, Tenant’s rights and privileges herein established.   

 
  26.  Title, Access, and Authority.  Landlord covenants and warrants to Tenant 

that  Landlord  presently  owns  the  fee  simple  interest  in  and  to  the 
Property; that the Premises are served by legal access from a public way; 
that Landlord is duly authorized and empowered to enter into this lease; 
and  that  the  person  executing  this  Lease  on  behalf  of  the  Landlord 
warrants himself to be duly authorized to bind the Landlord hereto. 

 
  27.  Notices.    Any  notice,  demand  or  communication  which  Landlord  or 

Tenant shall desire or be  required  to give pursuant  to  the provisions of 
this Lease shall be sent by registered or certified mail; and the giving of 
any  such  notices  shall  be  deemed  complete  upon  mailing  in  a  United 
States Post Office with postage charges prepaid, addressed to the party 
intended to be given such notice at its address as first above set forth in 
this  Lease or  to  such other address as  such party may heretofore have 
designated. 

 
  28.  Contingencies.    Tenant  shall  have  the  right  to  cancel  this  Lease  upon 

written notice to Landlord, relieving both parties of all further obligations 
hereunder, if Tenant, acting reasonably and in good faith, shall be unable 
to obtain any or all licenses or permits required to construct its intended 
improvements  upon  the  Premises  and/or  conduct  Tenant’s  business  at 
the  Premises;  if  Tenant’s  technical  reports  fail  to  establish  to  Tenant’s 
reasonable  satisfaction  that  the Premises  are  capable of being  suitably 
engineered to accomplish Tenant’s intended use of the Premises. 

 
  29.  Tenant’s Personal Property.   Landlord hereby agrees that all of Tenant’s 

Equipment is and shall remain Tenant’s personal property, free from any 
lien of Landlord, and that the same shall never be considered fixtures to 
the  water  tower.    Tenant  shall  at  all  times  be  authorized  to  remove 

Page 38 of 130



9 
 

Tenant’s  Equipment  from  the  Premises,  provided  that  such  removal  is 
accomplished without damage  to  the water  tower or  interference with 
Landlord’s business or that of Landlord’s tenants. 

 
   30.  Construction or Mechanics Liens. 
 

(a) All  construction  work  done  by  Tenant  on  the  Premises  shall  be 
performed in a good and workmanlike manner in compliance with all 
governmental  requirements.    Tenant  agrees  to  indemnify  Landlord 
and  hold  it  harmless  against  any  loss,  liability  or  damage  resulting 
from such work, and Tenant shall, if requested by Landlord, furnish a 
bond or other security satisfactory to Landlord against any such loss, 
liability or damage. 

 
(b) The Tenant shall not suffer or permit any construction or mechanics 

liens to be filed, or if filed, to remain uncontested, against the fee of 
the  Premises,  nor  against  the  Tenant's  interest  in  the  Premises,  by 
reason  of work,  labor,  services  or materials  supplied  or  claimed  to 
have been supplied to the Tenant or anyone holding the Premises or 
any part thereof through or under the Tenant; and nothing contained 
herein shall be deemed or construed  in any way as constituting  the 
consent or request of the Landlord, express or  implied, by  inference 
or otherwise,  to  any  contractor,  sub‐contractor,  laborer or material 
men  for  the  performance  of  any  labor  or  the  furnishing  of  any 
materials  for any specific  improvement, alteration or  repair of or  to 
the Premises or any part thereof, nor as giving the Tenant any right, 
power or authority to contract for or permit the rendering of services 
or the furnishing of any materials that would give rise to the filing of 
mechanics' liens or construction liens against the fee of the Premises.  
If any such lien is filed, the Tenant shall immediately cause the same 
to be discharged or released or shall upon request provide adequate 
and acceptable security or bond to protect the Landlord's interest. 

 
(c) If any such construction   or mechanics'  lien shall at any time be filed 

against the Premises, the Tenant covenants that it will promptly take 
and  diligently  prosecute  appropriate  action  to  have  the  same 
discharged by payment, bonding or otherwise,  and  that  it will hold 
the landlord free and harmless of and from any and all liability to any 
contractor, sub‐contractor, material man, laborer or any other person 
relating to or arising because of any  improvements or alterations on 
or to the Premises, and that it will defend on behalf of the Landlord, 
at the Tenant's sole cost and expense, any action, suit or proceeding 
which may be brought for the enforcement of any such lien, and that 
it will pay any damages and discharge any judgments entered therein.  

Page 39 of 130



10 
 

Upon  the  Tenant's  failure  to  do  any  of  the  foregoing  things,  the 
Landlord  may  take  such  action  as  may  be  reasonably  necessary  to 
protect  the  Landlord's  interest,  in  addition  to  any  other  right  or 
remedy which  it may have; and any amount paid by the Landlord  in 
connection  with  such  action  shall  be  repaid  by  the  Tenant  to  the 
Landlord upon demand, together with interest thereon at the rate of 
12% per annum. 

 
  31.  Casualty.    In  the  event  that  the water  tower  is destroyed or  substantially 

damaged by casualty, Landlord may, within  sixty  (60) days of  the event of 
casualty, elect  to either  repair and  restore  the Premises or  terminate  this 
Lease without any liability to Tenant.  If Landlord elects to repair and restore 
the  Premises,  Landlord  shall  promptly  undertake  all  necessary  work  to 
accomplish  the same, and upon completion thereof, Tenant shall reoccupy 
the  Premises  and  continue  to  be  bound  by  this  lease.    Under  no 
circumstances shall Landlord be liable to Tenant for any damage to, or costs 
of  restoring,  Tenant’s  equipment  as  a  result  of  such  event  of  casualty.  
Tenant’s  rent shall abate commensurately with  the extent and duration of 
Tenant’s  loss of use, and Landlord shall notify Tenant  in writing within sixty 
(60) days  following the occurrence of the damage whether Landlord elects 
to repair and restore the water tower. 

 
32. Environmental Warranty.   
 

(a) Landlord hereby represents and warrants to Tenant that Landlord has 
never  generated,  stored,  handled,  or  disposed  of  any  hazardous 
waste or hazardous substance upon the Premises, and that Landlord 
has no knowledge of such uses historically having been made of the 
Premises  or  such  substances  historically  having  been  introduced 
thereon. 

 
(b) The  Tenant  represents  and  warrants  that  its  use  of  the  Premises 

herein  will  not  generate  any  hazardous  substance,  and  it  will  not 
store  or  dispose  on  the  Premises  nor  transport  to  or  over  the 
Premises  any  hazardous  substance  in  violation  of  any  applicable 
Federal,  State  or  local  law,  regulation  or  rule.    The  Tenant  further 
agrees  to  hold  the  Landlord  harmless  from  and  indemnify  the 
Landlord against any  release of  such hazardous  substances and any 
damage,  loss  or  expense  or  liability  resulting  from  such  release, 
including all attorney's  fees, costs and penalties  incurred as a  result 
thereof, which was caused by the Tenant or any of  its employees or 
agents.  "Hazardous substance" shall be interpreted broadly to mean 
any substance or material defined or designated as hazardous or toxic 
waste, hazardous or toxic material, hazardous or toxic or radioactive 

Page 40 of 130



11 
 

substance,  or  any  other  similar  term  by  any  Federal,  State  or  local 
environmental  law,  regulation  or  rule  presently  in  effect  or 
promulgated  in the future, as such  laws, regulations or rules may be 
amended from time to time; and it shall be interpreted to include but 
not  limited  to,  any  substance  which  after  release  into  the 
environment will or may reasonably be anticipated to cause sickness, 
death or disease.  The Landlord represents and warrants that it has no 
knowledge  of  any  hazardous  substance  existing  on  the  property  in 
violation of any Federal, State or local law, regulation or rule. 

 
  33.  Compliance with FCC Radio Frequency Emissions Requirements. 
 

(a) It  shall be  the  responsibility of Tenant  to ensure  that Tenant’s use, 
installation, or modification of Equipment at  the Premises does not 
cause  radio  frequency exposure  levels of all  the existing equipment 
located at the Premises and in the surrounding vicinity (including the 
Communications  Equipment,  Landlord’s  equipment,  and  all  other 
transmitting  equipment  in  the  vicinity)  to  exceed  those  levels 
permitted  by  the  Federal  Communications  Commission  (“FCC”).  
Landlord  shall  require  other  Tenants  installing  equipment  after  the 
installation  of  the  Communications  Equipment  to  bear  the  same 
responsibility.   

 
(b) Tenant agrees that in the event that there is any change to applicable 

rules,  regulations,  and  procedures  governing  exposure  to  radio 
frequency radiation which place the Tenant’s antenna apparatus and 
related  equipment  in  non‐compliance,  Tenant  will  cooperate  with 
Landlord  and  other  users  of  the  Tower  to  bring  the  antenna 
apparatus  and  equipment  into  compliance, which  cooperation  shall 
include, but not be  limited  to,  sharing pro  rata  the costs associated 
with bringing the equipment and antenna into compliance. 

 
34. Quiet  Enjoyment.    Landlord  covenants  that  Tenant  shall  have  quiet  and 

peaceable non‐exclusive possession of the Premises throughout the duration 
of  this  Lease,  and  that  Landlord  will  not  intentionally  disturb  Tenant’s 
occupancy thereof as long as Tenant is not in default hereunder. 

 
35. Surrender.    Upon  the  expiration  of  this  Lease,  Tenant  shall  remove  all  of 

Tenant’s property from the Premises within sixty (60) days and surrender the 
Premises  to  Landlord  in  the  same  condition  as  existed  prior  to  Tenant’s 
possession thereof, or  in as nearly the same condition as  it  is practicable to 
achieve, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

 

Page 41 of 130



12 
 

36. Attorney’s fees and expenses.  In any action on this Lease at law or in equity, 
the prevailing party  shall be entitled  to  recover  the  reasonable  costs of  its 
successful case, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of appeal. 

 
37. Remedies.   The parties shall be entitled to the application of all appropriate 

remedies available to them under state and federal  law  in the enforcement 
of this Lease. 

 
38. Entire Agreement.  This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties  and  supersedes  any  prior  understandings  or  oral  or  written 
agreements between the parties respecting the within subject matter. 

 
39. Modifications.   This Lease may not be modified, except  in writing sighed by 

the party against whom such modification is sought to be enforced. 
 

40. Binding Effect.  All of the covenants, conditions, and provisions of this Lease 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their 
respective successors and assigns. 

 
41. Choice  of  Law.    This  agreement  shall  be  governed  and  construed  in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. 
 
42. Special Conditions. 

 
(a) No exterior storage of materials, equipment or vehicles  is permitted 

on  the  property,  except  the  temporary  and  orderly  placement  of 
items  in  conjunction  with  maintenance,  repair,  replacement  or 
removal activities. 

 
(b) Tenant shall be responsible for maintaining the Tenant’s equipment. 

 
(c) The  Landlord  shall  not  be  liable  for  any  damage  to  the  equipment 

occasioned by water, snow or ice. 
 

(d) Any modifications  to  the equipment  shall be  subject  to  the written 
approval  of  the  Landlord  and  any  other  required  government 
approvals  of  the  Landlord  and  any  other  required  governmental 
approvals  before  the  Tenant  may  begin  the  modification  of  the 
equipment.   Notwithstanding any provision of  this sub‐paragraph  to 
the  contrary,  without  obtaining  the  Landlord's  prior  consent,  the 
Tenant  shall  have  the  right  to  make  additions,  alterations  or 
improvements to the Tenant's equipment housed within any Tenant’s 
Equipment  Shelter  on  the  Premises  and  replace  any  and  all  of  its 
equipment  installed  on  or  about  the  tower  with  replacement 

Page 42 of 130



13 
 

equipment of  the same kind, which  is re‐installed  in the same place 
and  position  and  is  of  the  same  size  and  weight  as  the  replaced 
equipment. 

 
(e) Tenant’s  equipment  shall  remain  the  exclusive  property  of  the 

Tenant. 
 

(f) The Tenant shall in no way encumber or allow to be encumbered, the 
Landlord's title to the Premises. 

 
(g) Within  thirty  days  following  the  installation  of  the  equipment,  the 

Tenant shall provide the Landlord with an as‐built survey showing the 
actual  location of  the equipment  installed and detailed  inventory of 
all equipment  installed on the  land and tower, however Tenant shall 
not need  to provide  a detailed  inventory of  the equipment housed 
within Tenant’s Equipment Shelter. 

 
(h) The  Tenant  shall,  at  its  own  expense,  keep  and  maintain  Tenant’s 

Equipment  in a presentable condition consistent with good business 
practice  and  in  a  manner  consistent  with  the  preservation  and 
protection of the general appearance and value of other premises  in 
the immediate vicinity. 

 
43. Non‐discrimination.   The Tenant agrees not to discriminate because of race, 

religion,  marital  status,  age,  sex,  disability,  national  origin  or  ancestry,  or 
political beliefs.  

 
44. Conflict of Interest. 

 
(a) The  Tenant warrants  that  it  and  its  agents  and employees have no 

public or private interest and will not acquire directly or indirectly any 
such  interest,  which  would  conflict  in  any  manner  with  the 
performances of the services under this lease. 

 
(b) The  Tenant  shall  not  employ  or  contract  with  any  person  for  any 

services included under the provisions of this lease whom it knows to 
be currently employed by the Landlord. 

 
45. Compliance.   The Tenant shall observe and promptly and effectively comply 

with  all  applicable  statutes,  rules,  orders,  ordinances,  requirements  and 
regulations of the Landlord, the County of Jo Daviess, the State of Illinois, the 
Federal  Government  and  any  other  governmental  authority  having 
jurisdiction  over  the  premises.    The  Tenant  may,  if  in  good  faith  and  on 
reasonable grounds, dispute  the validity of any charge, complaint or action 

Page 43 of 130



14 
 

taken pursuant to or under the color of any statute, rule, order, ordinance, 
requirement  or  regulation,  defend  against  the  same,  and  in  good  faith 
diligently  conduct  any  proceedings  to  prevent  and  avoid  any  adverse 
consequences of the same.  The Tenant agrees that any such contest shall be 
prosecuted to a final conclusion as soon as possible and that it will hold the 
Landlord  harmless  with  respect  to  any  actions  taken  by  any  lawful 
governmental authority with respect thereto.    

 
END OF AGREEMENT 
(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 
 
 
 
 

Page 44 of 130



15 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE 
 
 
  IN  WITNESS  WHEREOF,  the  parties  hereto  bind  themselves  to  this  Facilities 
Space Lease as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
  LANDLORD:        TENANT: 
               
  CITY OF GALENA       MIDWEST MEDICAL CENTER 
  a Municipal Corporation    an Illinois 501()(3)  
              Not‐for‐Profit Organization 
                     
 
 
By: _____________________________  By:_____________________________ 
      Terry Renner, Mayor            
 
 
      ______________________________   _____________________________ 
      Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk              
     
               
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45 of 130



16 
 

 
 
STATE OF _____________________ ) 
 
COUNTY OF ___________________ ) 
 
  I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for the State and County aforesaid, do 
hereby  certify  that  ______________________,  known  to  me  to  be  the  same  person 
whose name  is subscribed to the foregoing Facilities Space Lease, appeared before me 
this day  in person and acknowledged that, pursuant to (his) (her) authority, signed the 
said Lease as (his) (her) free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
  Given under my hand and seal  this _______ day of ______________________, 
2019. 
 
             
                ___________________________ 
                  Notary Public 
 
                My commission expires__________ 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF _____________________ ) 
 
COUNTY OF ___________________ ) 
 
  I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for the State and County aforesaid, do 
hereby  certify  that  ______________________, _______________________,  known  to 
me to be the same person whose name  is subscribed to the  foregoing Facilities Space 
Lease, appeared before me this day  in person and acknowledged that, pursuant to his 
authority, he signed the said Lease as his free and voluntary act, on behalf of Tenant, for 
the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
  Given under my hand and seal  this _______ day of ______________________, 
2019. 
 
             
                ___________________________ 
                  Notary Public 
 
                My commission expires__________ 

Page 46 of 130



 

  

MIDWEST MEDICAL CENTER 

FRANKLIN STREET WATER TOWER EQUIPMENT 
INSTALLATION 
Prepared for the City of Galena Illinois 

Christopher S. Geyer, Netux Solutions LLC 
5-6-2019 
 

Page 47 of 130



MIDWEST MEDICAL CENTER 
FRANKLIN STREET WATER TOWER EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION 
5/6/2019 

PLAN OVERVIEW 

 The planed installation of equipment at the Franklin Street Water Tower requires noninvasive affixing of three 
components, two on the tower itself and one on the utility building below. The equipment consists of two directional 
radio arrays and a small equipment enclosure. Each component is connected to the greater assembly by insolated 
copper wire. The small equipment encloser requires 120V AC utility power. 

 

1. SSE Radio Array Installation 

 The SSE Radio Array will be installed on the lower south side of the of the water tower via preexisting mounting 
points on the railing [see Schedule A]. The array will be mounted from a 24” section of 2” schedule 40 pipe and 
affixed via U-Bolt on outward side of structure. The attachment will not obstruct the pathway. 

 

• Attachment on Exterior of South Side Walkway 
• Utilizes Preexisting Mount Points 
• Does Not Impede the Pathway 
• There Are No Conflicting Attachments 
• Visual of Placement Attached on Schedule A 

2. NNW Radio Array Installation 

 The NNW Radio Array will be installed on the top of the water tower via preexisting pole. The attachment will face 
away from the center north by northwest. The array will be mounted to a bracket extending 8” away from the 
existing 2.5” pole and secured to the existing 2.5” pole at two locations 33” apart via U-Bolts [see Schedule B]. The 
attachment will not interfere with the already affixed lighting rod. 

 

• Attachment on Top Pole 
• Nonpenetrating Mount Points 
• Does Not Impede the Lightning Rod 
• There Are No Conflicting Attachments 
• Visual of Placement Attached on Schedule B 

3. Small Equipment Enclosure Installation 

 The Small Equipment Enclosure will be installed on the north side of the building. The non-metallic enclosure will be 
secured to the wall with four masonry anchors. The placement will be on the corner of the wall approximately 24” off 
the ground [see Schedule C]. The attachment will not interfere with any preexisting attachments. 

 

Page 48 of 130



• Attachment on North Exterior Wall of Building 
• Secured via Masonry Anchors 
• The attachment will not interfere with any preexisting attachments 
• Visual of Placement on Schedule C 

4. Cabling 

 Cabling will be installed in two legs, one from the Small Equipment Enclosure spanning new conduit [see Schedule 
D 1] up to the SSE Radio Array [see Schedule D 2]. The second leg will follow existing cabling up to the NNW 
Radio Array [see Schedule D 2]. 

 

• Two Sections of Cabling 
o Small Equipment Enclosure to SSE Radio Array Following New Conduit and Existing Cabling 
o SSE Radio Array to NNW Radio Array Following Existing Cabling 

• Installation of New Conduit from Small Equipment Enclosure to Water Tower 
• New Cabling will not Interfere with Preexisting Cabling 
• New Cabling Runs Will Follow Underneath Preexisting to Avoid Climbing Interference 
• Visuals of Cabling Path on Schedule D 

5. Power 

 The installation requires access 120V AC power source. Placement to be determined by utility provider. 

 

6. High-Level Timeline/Schedule 

 All work is currently awaiting city approval. Midwest Medical Center is on a very tight schedule to have the project 
completed by 5/17/2019. We would like to proceed at the earliest opportunity permitted by the City of Galena 
Illinois. 

 

7. General Tower Care 
a. No welding on the water vessel without consideration of interior coating repair. 
b. Touch up paint with water tower quality primer and paint wherever coating is compromised. 

i. Examples 
1. Cutting 
2. Grinding 
3. Welding 
4. Drilling 
5. Etc. 

c. Installation shall not impede water tower access and the ability to ascend safely. 

 

Page 49 of 130



Schedule A

 

 

  

Page 50 of 130



Schedule B 

 

  

Page 51 of 130



Schedule C 

 

  

Page 52 of 130



Schedule D 

1 (New Conduit) 

 

 

Page 53 of 130



2. (Existing Cabling) 

 

 

Page 54 of 130



2. (Notation on Placement Underneath Existing) 
 

 

Page 55 of 130



 AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND THE GALENA‐JO DAVIESS 
COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY & MUSEUM FOR THE REIMBURSEMENT OF UTILITY AND 

MAINTENANCE EXPENSES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020    

 
WHEREAS, the City of Galena (hereinafter called “City”) entered into a Lease 

Agreement with the Galena Historical Society & Museum (now Galena‐Jo Daviess 
County Historical Society & Museum and hereinafter called “Museum”) on the 7th day of 
June, 1938; and 
 
  WHEREAS, said Lease contemplated that the Museum would occupy the City‐
owned property located at 211 South Bench Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 from the 7th 
day of June, 1938 until the 7th day of June, 2038; and 
 
  WHEREAS, on the 10th day of December, 2012, the City and the Museum agreed 
to enter into an Addendum to the above‐mentioned lease agreement; and  
 
  WHEREAS, the Addendum is for a term from the 10th day of December 2012 until 
the 7th day of June 2038; and  
 
  WHEREAS, as part of the Addendum, the City agreed to reimburse for a period of 
one year ending April 30, 2013 certain Museum utility and maintenance expenses, not 
exceeding $10,000 in sum, for the building at 211 S. Bench Street; and  
 
  WHEREAS, in the following year, the Museum and City entered into a similar 
utility and maintenance expenses reimbursement agreement, for expenses not 
exceeding $5,000.00, for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2014 and ending April 30, 
2015; and  
 
  WHEREAS, the Museum and City desire to enter into a new utility and 
maintenance expenses reimbursement agreement, for expenses not to exceed 
$5,000.00, for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2019 and ending April 30, 2020. 
 
  NOW THEREFORE: 
 
  This City and the Museum agree as follows: 
 
  1.  TERM: The term this Agreement shall be from May 1, 2019 through April 
30, 2020, the term constituting a fiscal year of the City.   Said Agreement to terminate 
on April 30, 2020. 
 
  2.  PAYMENT OF UTILITY BILLS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES:  For the City’s 
fiscal year commencing May 1, 2019 and ending April the 30, 2020, the city agrees to 
reimburse the Museum not more than $5,000 for utility bills and/or maintenance 
expenses of the Museum, incurred at the property commonly known as 211 South 
Bench Street, Galena, Illinois 61036.   It is expressly understood between the City and 
Museum that the City’s total contribution toward utilities and/or maintenance expenses 

Page 56 of 130



 2

shall not exceed $5,000.  The Museum shall submit to the City by April 1, 2020 a list of 
utility bills and/or maintenance expenses for which they desire to be reimbursed.  The 
City shall reimburse the Museum an amount not to exceed $5,000 by April 30, 2020.  
The parties to this agreement acknowledge the City’s obligation to reimburse the 
Museum for utilities and/or maintenance expenses is only for the City’s fiscal year 
commencing on May 1, 2019 and ending on April the 30, 2020 and does not continue to 
future years. 
 
  3.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This constitutes the entire Agreement.  All other 
terms and conditions of the lease agreement entered into on the 10th day of December 
2012 shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Museum have signed and sealed this 
Addendum this _______ day of ______________________, 2019.  
 
 
CITY OF GALENA, a Municipal Corporation         
 
BY:    __________________________________         
    Terrance J. Renner, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  _________________________________ 
    Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 
 
 
GALENA HISTORICAL SOCIETY & MUSEUM 
 
BY:    ________________________________ 
     
 
ATTEST:  ________________________________ 
 
 

Page 57 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator  

DATE:    May 8, 2019 

RE:    Seasonal Employee Pay   
 
 
I am writing for approval of the 2019 wages for our seasonal grounds maintenance employees.  
We have three returning employees and one new employee.  Public Works Director, Jim 
Rigdon, surveyed the wages in the area for similar positions and believes a starting wage of 
$11.00 is required to attract new employees.  Even with the $11.00 wage, finding employees 
has been challenging.  
 
Our current employees and their proposed wages are shown in Table 1. 
  

Table 1. 2019 Seasonal Grounds Maintenance Employees Proposed Wages 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
I recommend approval of the wages for our seasonal grounds maintenance employees.  Please 
contact me if you have any questions.       
      
Thank you. 
     
  
 

Employee  Years of Service  Proposed Wage 

Andrew Stangl  4  $11.75 

Richard Soat  4  $11.50 

Isaac Stangl  1  $11.25 

Mitchell Foley  New Hire  $11.00 

 

Page 58 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator  

DATE:    May 7, 2019 

RE:    New Liquor License Classification Request 
 
 
I am attaching separate letters from Tina Knautz and Lisa Kempner requesting the creation of a 
new classification of liquor license that would be applicable to their planned businesses.  They 
are both asking for a license option that would allow them to sell beer and wine without 
associated food service.   
 
Chapter 111.20 of the Code of Ordinances lists the types or classes of liquor licenses.  The 
closest class of license to the proposed business uses is the Class J license.  As described below, 
this license allows the sale of beer, wine and ale only at a restaurant.  Neither of their 
businesses would be restaurants.  The annual fee for the Class J license is $750.  
 

   (I)   Class “J” license shall be known as a beer, wine and ale only license. It shall 
authorize the retail sale of beer, wine and ale for consumption on premises only at a 
restaurant whose principal business as defined in this chapter is not the retail sale of 
alcoholic beverages. It shall be unlawful to sell alcoholic liquor between the hours of 
1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. except New Year’s Day, in which case such sales shall not be 
made between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m.  The annual license fee shall be set 
by the City Council from time to time. 
 

If the council is interested in creating a new classification of license, I suggest considering a 
“Class J‐1” license that would be the same as the Class J, but without an associated restaurant.  
The current ordinance limits the number of Class J license to three.  The new license could be 
priced more than the $750 for the Class J, perhaps not less than $975 per year.  An ordinance 
would need to be prepared to create the new license.  The ordinance could be presented as 
early as the May 27 meeting.  

 
Please contact me if you have any questions.       
      
Thank you.   
  
 

 

Page 59 of 130



Page 60 of 130



Page 61 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    May 2, 2019 

RE:    Water and Wastewater Operations and Maintenance  
 
 
In January, I presented a report examining the possibility of the City taking the water and sewer 
operations and maintenance responsibilities back “in‐house” at the expiration of the current 
contract with Veolia on July 31, 2019.  After reviewing the options, the city council decided to issue 
a request for proposals (RFP) to firms interested in a new five or ten‐year operations and 
maintenance contract.  After an extensive evaluation period, the committee charged with managing 
the RFP process has concluded its work.  The evaluation committee was Alderperson Jerry 
Westemeier, Deputy City Engineer, Matt Oldenburg, City Engineer, Andy Lewis, and me.  I am 
writing to review the process and present the recommendation of the committee.   
 
Request for Proposals Process  
A detailed RFP was released by our staff on January 11 with a due date of March 1.  The RFP set 
forth the requirements for the written proposals to be submitted by interested firms.  The RFP was 
distributed to six firms initially, with a seventh firm requesting the proposal later.   
 
On February 12, the City hosted a well‐attended tour of the wastewater treatment plant for 
interested firms.  Three addenda were issued by our review committee to clarify aspects of the RFP 
and answer questions from the interested firms.  The addenda were provided to all interested firms 
and posted on our website with the RFP.   
 
Six firms submitted proposals by the March 1 deadline.  One of the original seven firms declined to 
submit.  Each committee member independently reviewed and rated each proposal using the 
Project Evaluation Form attached to this report as Appendix A.  The evaluation form included five 
categories with a weighting factor assigned to each category.  All four of the committee members 
independently scored the same three firms the highest.  The top three firms were Inframark, U.S. 
Water, and Veolia.  A summary of the committee ratings is shown in Table 1 on the following page.  
All proposals are available for inspection by the council.   

Page 62 of 130



2 of 4 

Table 1.  Review Committee Final Ratings of Interested Firms 
 

                  Woodard       

Category  Criteria  Weight  Inframark  USW  Veolia  & Curran  People's  MI2 

       
1  Experience, comparable contracts, expertise  10  150  150  130  130  100  60 

2  Proximity and additional support  5  60  60  65  55  60  35 

3  Management team and operational knowledge  10  140  140  130  130  100  70 

4  References  8  120  88  104  104  104  24 

5  Cost  8  96  120  80  64  64  88 

     
     TOTAL  566  558  509  483  428  277 

    
Interviews of the top three firms were conducted by the review committee the last week of March 
and the first week of April.  A second interview was conducted with US Water Utility Group (USW). 
 
Recommendation 
Based on the quality of the proposal, the proposed level of services, the interview process and the 
contract negotiation process, the review committee recommends executing a five‐year contract 
with USW.  The proposed contract is attached as Appendix B.  USW did not take any exceptions to 
the sample contract provided by the City as part of the RFP.   
 
Selecting the most qualified firm was a challenging process for the review committee.  Five of the six 
responding firms spent considerable time and effort to prepare very detailed and responsive 
proposals.  The top three firms interviewed very well and demonstrated considerable expertise, 
resources and commitment to our project.  Again, selecting the most qualified firm was not easy.     
 
The recommendation to contract with USW was unanimous among the members of the review 
committee.  While drawing distinctions between well‐qualified firms is difficult, the review 
committee cites the following attributes of USW.     
 

 Good record of efficient operations in the region.  

 Thorough understanding of the Galena facilities and the requirements for operating the 
facilities.  

 Record of high‐level service delivery to clients. 

 Strong customer service procedures. 

 Emphasis on preventive maintenance. 

 Commitment to retain current Galena employees who are interested in continuing 
employment.  

 Exemplary record of regulatory compliance. 

 Demonstrated commitment to technology, innovation and efficiency to reduce costs for the 
client. 

 Open and transparent reporting and accounting expected to be basis for strong partnership 
with the City. 

Page 63 of 130



3 of 4 

 All staff assigned to the Galena contract would work solely for operation and maintenance of 
the Galena facilities (no shared employees with other communities). 

 Extensive human resources and equipment within the company that could be used as 
needed with the Galena contract. 

 Very community oriented with a demonstrated commitment to community endeavors. 

 Demonstrated experience successfully transitioning contracts previously held by other firms. 
 
Contract Cost 
As part of the RFP, the City requested interested firms provide contract pricing for five and ten‐year 
contracts.  Those pricing tables are provided as Appendix C and D, respectively.  The first year of 
proposed pricing is shown in Table 2 below.  Most of the firms, including USW, proposed an annual 
contract price increase equal to the Consumer Price Index for the year.  This approach is the same 
as with the current contract. 
 

Table 2.  Current Contract Price Compared to First‐Year Contract Pricing Proposals 
 

Item  Current  Inframark  USW Utility  Veolia  
Woodard & 
Curran 

People 
Service, Inc. 

MI2  

Personnel & Operations   $415,587    $355,764   $315,905   $396,500   $436,618    $340,836   $297,500 

                       

Maintenance & Repair   $79,749    $80,000   $80,000   $80,000   $80,000    $80,000   $79,000 

                      

Chemicals   $17,926    $17,925   $17,926   $17,925   $18,000    $18,000   $16,500 

                       

Utilities 
 

$140,000*    $140,000   $140,000   $151,656   $140,000    $150,000   $126,000 

                       

Outside Services      $46,004   $17,100   $19,302   $51,388    $55,174   $22,000 

                       

Other      $9,932   $34,761   $15,880   $13,700    $16,915   $22,500 

                       

Overhead & Fee      $88,585   $59,869   $73,320   $184,923    $90,155   $40,000 

      
TOTAL   $653,262    $738,210   $665,561   $754,583   $924,629    $751,080   $603,500 

    *The current contract has an allotment of $126,000 for electricity.  The figure has been adjusted to $140,000 to more  
       accurately reflect actual electricity costs and to match the amount set forth in the RFP. 

 
The RFP asked for pricing for five fulltime employees.  Veolia currently operates with four fulltime 
employees and a part‐time or seasonal employee for grounds maintenance and general labor.  With 
five fulltime employees, the cost proposals from five of the six interested firms exceeded the 
current contract amount of $653,262.   
 
As a measure of cost control, we obtained updated pricing from USW for four fulltime employees 
and an allowance for a part‐time or five‐month seasonal employee.  We also asked the firm to 

Page 64 of 130



4 of 4 

increase their Personnel & Operations pricing to a level believed to be comparable to the local labor 
market.  This changed the first‐year USW price to $694,362.   This represents an increase of $41,100 
over the current contract.  In comparison with the pricing of the other firms, and the transparent 
cost model of USW, we believe the USW price represents the fair market cost of our contract.   
 
The review committee has stressed with USW our support and desire for USW to hire the current 
Galena contract employees to staff the new contract.  While we believe the USW pricing will allow 
them to offer comparable pay and benefits to current Galena contract employees, the committee 
wants the city council to understand that there is always a possibility that one or more of the 
current contract employees will not choose to accept employment with USW or could be 
disqualified from employment with USW during pre‐employment screening.  In the end, the 
decision to form an employment relationship is between the company and each individual 
employee.  Again, we are hopeful that all four current contract employees will join USW and 
continue to work the Galena contract.  
 
The contract expense is split evenly between our Water Fund and Sewer Fund.  For the budget year 
starting May 1, we budgeted $660,000 for the contract, or $34,362 less than the USW price.  The 
Water Fund and Sewer Fund should be able to absorb this shortfall in the shortterm, but we must 
continue to monitor the adequacy of the revenue stream for both funds.  Rate adjustments may be 
needed for both funds in the coming years.   
 
Again, the review committee recommends entering into the proposed five‐year contract with USW 
and beginning the transition process.  We believe the firm will provide comprehensive service to 
efficiently operate and proactively maintain our water and wastewater systems.  We foresee a very 
open relationship with good communication where USW and the City of Galena work together to 
provide our citizens, businesses and visitors the best services possible.   
 
USW Vice President, Jeffery DuPont, plans to attend the May 13 council meeting and will be 
available for questions.  Should the contract be approved, we will begin planning the transition to 
USW immediately.  
 
  

Page 65 of 130



1‐B 
 

APPENDIX A 

Proposal Evaluation Form 

Contractor Name:  ______________________________________________________________ 

Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Person: ______________________________ Phone: ____________________________ 

Contact Email: __________________________________________________________________ 
 

Rate each firm in the five categories below.  To arrive at the Total, multiply Rating (highest = 5, 

lowest = 1) by Weight (highest = 10, lowest = 1).  Weight has been assigned to the categories 

according to their importance to the Contract.  Maximum point Total is 205. 

  Category     Rating   X   Weight   =     Total 

         

1.  The Contractor’s experience will be evaluated based upon its past 
history (such as number of projects, plant sizes, etc.) of successfully 
providing operations and maintenance services for similar facilities.  
The responses will be evaluated based on similar facilities operated 
and maintained under similar scenarios, duration of the contracts, 
references that are provided, and on the expertise of the proposed 
project support staff.  References will be contacted to verify 
satisfactory performance on other similar projects 
 

 

10 

 

2.  The proximity of the Contractor’s local corporate office and 
availability of additional operations support personnel. 
 

 
5 

 

3.  The capability and experience of the proposed management team in 
operation, maintenance and supervisory positions for projects of a 
similar nature.  Contractor shall also demonstrate its understanding 
of the facilities and that it possesses technical resources 
knowledgeable of key issues related to the facilities such as process 
control, asset management, system maintenance and capital 
improvement planning.  
                    

 

10 

 

4.  The feedback that is provided from a minimum of three (3) 
references.  The references will be contacted, and site visits may or 
may not be scheduled in order for the evaluation team to better 
understand the level of satisfaction that has been received by said 
references.  
           

 

8 

 

5.  Cost of the Contract as set forth on the Contract Cost Form.  
 

 
8 

 

   
TOTAL 

     

 

Page 66 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 1 of 25 

 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF THE CITY OF GALENA 
 

WATER/WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES AND DISTRIBUTION/COLLECTION SYSTEMS 
 

 
 
This Operations and Maintenance Agreement (“Agreement”), is entered into as of this 1st day of 
August,  2019  (“Effective Date”),  by  and  between U.S. Water  Services  Corporation,  a  Florida 
corporation  authorized  to  conduct  business  in  the  State  of  Illinois  as  USW  Utility  Group  
(“CONTRACTOR”), with its principal place of business at 1406 Central Avenue, Fort Dodge, Iowa 
50501; and the City of Galena, a municipal corporation in the county of Jo Daviess, State of Illinois 
(“OWNER”),  with  its  principal  place  of  business  at  101  Green  Street, Galena,  Illinois  61036.  
CONTRACTOR  and  OWNER  are  sometimes  herein  referred  to  individually  as  a  “Party”  and 
collectively as the “Parties.” 
   

WHEREAS, OWNER owns and operates a water and wastewater treatment facilities and 
associated distribution and collection systems, at the  locations set  forth  in Exhibit A attached 
hereto (“Facilities”); and 
 
  WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is engaged in the business of providing certain operations and 
management services for water and wastewater facilities; and 
 
  WHEREAS, it is the mutual desire of the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER to enter into this 
Agreement for services to be provided by the CONTRACTOR; and 
 

WHEREAS, OWNER has full power and authority under the laws of the State of Illinois to 
enter into this Agreement for the CONTRACTOR Services. 

 
NOW,  THEREFORE,  in  consideration  of  the  mutual  covenants,  conditions  and  terms 

contained herein, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. PURPOSE AND TERM 
 
As of the Effective Date, OWNER engages CONTRACTOR as an independent CONTRACTOR 
to provide  the CONTRACTOR  Services with  respect  to  the  Facilities  and  certain other 
OWNER Equipment, as hereinafter defined, for a term commencing on August 1, 2019 
and  expiring  on  July  31,  2024,  unless  otherwise  earlier  terminated  pursuant  to  the 
provisions of this Agreement.  As an independent CONTRACTOR, rather than an employee 
or  representative  of  OWNER,  CONTRACTOR  covenants  and  agrees  that  it  will  not 
represent to any third party that it, or any of its principals, officers, directors, employees 
or agents shall in any way obligate or be binding upon OWNER or its officials, except as 
provided in this Agreement. 
 

   

Page 67 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 2 of 25 

 

2. CONTRACTOR SERVICES 
 
The CONTRACTOR Services shall consist of those services specified in Exhibit B and Exhibit 
B‐1 attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

3. CONTRACTOR INSURANCE.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain the following insurance during 
the term of this Agreement: 

 
Commercial General Liability (includes Fire Damage 
Liability):  

 

Bodily Injury, Personal Injury, and Property Damage    $1,000,000 Occurrence 
$2,000,000 Aggregate 

Products and Completed Operations  $2,000,000 Occurrence 
Personal Injury and Advertising  $1,000,000 Occurrence 
Fire Damage Liability   $500,000 Occurrence  
 
Commercial Automobile Liability (any auto): 

   

Hired and Non‐Owned Liability  $1,000,000 Per Accident 
     
Worker’s Compensation:  Statutory Limit 
   
Employer’s Liability:    
Bodily Injury by Accident    $1,000,000 Each Accident 
Bodily Injury by Disease    $1,000,000 Policy Limit 
Bodily Injury by Disease    $1,000,000 Each Employee 
 
Pollution Liability:  

 

Bodily Injury and Property Damage    $5,000,000 Each Claim/Incident 
Environmental Damage from a Pollution Condition    $2,000,000 Aggregate 
 
Professional Liability:  

 

Damages from Performance of or Failure    $1,000,000 Occurrence 
to Perform Professional Services    $1,000,000 Aggregate 
 
Excess Liability and Umbrella: 

 
$10,000,000 Occurrence/ 
Aggregate 

 

CONTRACTOR shall furnish OWNER with satisfactory proof of such aforesaid  insurance.  
At all times during the terms of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall keep  in effect the 
aforesaid insurance coverage.  Neither failure to comply nor incomplete compliance with 
the  insurance  requirements  of  Section  3  shall  limit  or  relieve  CONTRACTOR  of  its 
obligations  hereunder.    If  CONTRACTOR  fails  to  purchase  or  maintain  the  insurance 
required  under  Section  3.  OWNER  may,  but  will  not  be  obligated  to,  purchase  such 

Page 68 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 3 of 25 

 

insurance on CONTRACTOR’s behalf, and OWNER shall be reimbursed for any premiums 
paid by OWNER on behalf of CONTRACTOR. 
 
All  the  above policies, except Worker’s Compensation  and Professional  Liability,  shall 
name OWNER as an additional  insured and contain a waiver of subrogation  in favor of 
OWNER where appropriate, but only to the extent of the CONTRACTOR’s performance 
and indemnification obligations pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
4. Responsibilities of OWNER 

 
a.  Equipment.  OWNER shall provide to CONTRACTOR, for CONTRACTOR’s sole and 
exclusive use, all equipment and structures and vehicles assigned to the Facilities as of 
the date hereof and listed on Exhibit C attached hereto (“OWNER’s Equipment”).  OWNER 
shall, during the term of this Agreement, be solely responsible for the cost of replacing 
the OWNER’s Equipment, as reasonably determined by CONTRACTOR as necessary  for 
the operation of the Facilities. 
 
b.     Permits.    OWNER  shall,  at  its  sole  cost  and  expense,  obtain  and  maintain  all 
required governmental  licenses, permits, and authorizations  required  to own, operate 
and maintain the OWNER’s Equipment and Facilities. 
 
c. Insurance.  OWNER will maintain the following Insurance during the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
Property Insurance (all risks):   Full Replacement cost value for Entire 

Facilities, Contents, Equipment & 
Computers and a waiver of subrogation 
against CONTRACTOR to the extent of 
coverage.  

Commercial Auto Liability (any auto)  $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit 
   
Worker’s Compensation:  Statutory  
   
Employer’s Liability   
Bodily Injury by Accident  $1,000,000 Each Accident 
Bodily Injury by Disease  $1,000,000 Policy Limit 
Bodily Injury by Disease  $1,000,000 Each Employee 
   
Commercial General Liability    
Bodily Injury, Personal Injury, and Property 
Damage 

$1,000,000 Occurrence  
$2,000,000 Aggregate  

 
      

Page 69 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 4 of 25 

 

OWNER shall furnish CONTRACTOR with satisfactory proof of all aforesaid insurance.  At all times 
during  the  terms  of  this  Agreement,  OWNER  shall  keep  in  effect  the  aforesaid  insurance 
coverage.  Neither failure to comply nor incomplete compliance with the insurance requirements 
of Section 4c shall limit or relieve OWNER of its obligations hereunder.  If OWNER fails to purchase 
or maintain the insurance required under Section 4c, CONTRACTOR may, but will not be obligate 
to, purchase such insurance on OWNER’s behalf, and CONTRACTOR shall be reimbursed for any 
premiums paid by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the OWNER.  

 

d.   Representations.    OWNER  represents  and  warrants  CONTRACTOR  that  the 
OWNER has, or will have or hold as of the date hereof, and will continue to have or hold 
throughout the term of this Agreement, all approvals, licenses, permits and certifications 
necessary to operate, manage, maintain and repair the Facilities. 

 
5. COMPENSATION 

 
a. Compensation.  OWNER  shall  pay  CONTRACTOR,  as  compensation  for  the 
CONTRACTOR  Services,  the  annual  sum  of  $694,961.70,  payable  in  equal  monthly 
installments  of  $57,913.48,  subject  to  adjustment  as  specified  below  (“CONTRACTOR 
Compensation’).  Monthly payments are due. In advance, no later than the tenth (10th) 
day of the month to which such payment relates.  Late payments shall accrue interest at 
the then current prime rate plus one percent (1%) per annum on the unpaid balance. 
 
b. Annual Adjustments.   Except for the “Electricity Expense Component” (defined 
below) the CONTRACTOR Compensation shall be adjusted annually on each anniversary 
of  the  Effective  Date,  beginning  with  an  initial  adjustment  of  the  CONTRACTOR 
Compensation as of the Effective Date.   The CONTRACTOR Compensation, exclusive of 
the  Electricity  Expense Component,  that  is  subject  to  the  initial  annual  adjustment  is 
$554,961.70.    This  component  of  the  CONTRACTOR  Compensation  shall  be  adjusted 
based upon  the percentage change  in  the Consumer Price  Index  (“CPI”) Midwest Size 
Class D, Series ID#CUUR0200SA0 for the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding 
such adjustment date, with a maximum adjustment increase of five percent (5%).  Each 
annual adjustment of the CONTRACTOR Compensation is cumulative throughout the term 
of this Agreement. 

 
“Agreement Year” means twelve (12) month period during the Term.  The first Agreement 
Year begins on the Effective Date and ends on the day before the first anniversary of the 
Effective  Date.    Each  subsequent  Agreement  Year  during  the  Term  begins  on  the 
anniversary of the Effective Date.  Any computation made on the basis of an Agreement 
Year shall be adjusted on a pro rata basis to take into account any Agreement Year of less 
than  three  hundred  and  sixty‐five  (365)  or  three  hundred  and  sixty‐six  (366)  days, 
whichever is applicable. 

   
c.  Adjustments Based on Water and Wastewater Flow and Loadings.   The data 
used by CONTRACTOR is as follows:    

Page 70 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 5 of 25 

 

Water   
     Average daily production: 
   

.65MGD 

Wastewater   
     Average daily flow:  1. 

1.17MGD 
     Average daily influent BOD:  350 mg/l 
     Average daily influent TSS:   500 mg/l 
     Average daily influent N113    40mg/l 

 
In  the event  tht during any  twelve  (12) month  rolling period  the average  flow and/or 
loading  increases  or  decreases  by  five  percent  (5%)  or  more,  the  CONTRACTOR 
Compensations may be adjusted upward or downward as agreed to between the OWNER 
and CONTRACTOR.   

 

d.  Adjustments Based on Increased Operating Costs.    In the event that any changes 
in the scope of the operations of, or regulations applicable to, the Facilities shall occur, 
from and after the Effective Date, including, but not limited to, changes in government 
regulations  or  reporting  requirements  effluent  quality  standards,  monitoring 
requirements, level of treatment, personnel qualifications, applicable taxes, staffing rules, 
or changes in the scope of the CONTRACTOR Service (as set forth on Exhibit B and Exhibit 
B‐1)  which  increases  the  cost  of  operating  the  Facilities,  OWNER  shall  pay  to 
CONTRACTOR  an  increase  in  the  annual  compensation  paid  to  CONTRACTOR,    as 
reasonably determined by CONTRACTOR and the OWNER, and retroactive to the date of 
such notification by CONTRACTOR (which shall include a reasonably detailed explanation 
for the increase to the annual compensation). 
 
e. Adjustment  Based  on  Changed  Electricity  Rates.    The  electricity  expense  is 
included  in  the  annual  fees  to be paid  to CONTRACTOR  and  is  initially established  at 
$140,000 (“Electricity Expense Component”).  The Electricity Expense Component shall be 
adjusted based on any change in electricity rates or any other form of change to utility 
provider charges of any type or kind.  Upon any such change, a like amount adjustment 
will be made to the Electricity Expense Component of the CONTRACTOR Compensation.  
Any amount less than the Electricity Expense Component not expended by CONTRACTOR 
for electricity during a given Agreement Year shall be returned to OWNER in full within 
sixty (60) days of the end of the Agreement Year.  During any Agreement Year, amounts 
expended by CONTRACTOR which aggregate to a total greater than the Electricity Expense 
Component shall be reimbursed by OWNER to CONTRACTOR in full within sixty (60) days 
of the end of the Agreement Year. 
 

6. Capital Improvements.  OWNER shall be solely responsible for all Capital Improvement 
Expenditures.  For purposes of this Agreement, a Capital Improvement Expenditure shall 
be  defined  to  be  the  cost  of  adding  new  equipment  (accessory,  appurtenances,  or 

Page 71 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 6 of 25 

 

components thereof), or new structures (as opposed to replacing, maintaining, repairing, 
or rebuilding the existing structures) which satisfy any of the following criteria. 
 
a. increases its efficiency and capacity for which it was designed and constructed; or 

 
b. has a service life of at least (5) years; or 

 
c. costs  in  excess  of  $3,000  dollars  per  occurrence,  exclusive  of  any  CONTRACTOR 

personnel labor costs. 
 

CONTRACTOR  shall  submit,  for OWNER’s approval, Capital  Improvement Expenditures 
prior  to  incurring  the  same.    Each  request  for  approval  will  identify  the  reason  and 
estimated  costs  for  the  expenditure.    Notwithstanding  anything  to  this  Section  6, 
CONTRACTOR shall have the right, in emergency situations, to authorize the expenditure 
of monies for capital  improvements where the failure to do so would have an adverse 
effect, as determined by CONTRACTOR, on the Facilities or the OWNER Equipment. 
 
The OWNER and CONTRACTOR will work together to develop, agree on and execute more 
substantive capital upgrade projects in an effort to further reduce Facility operating and 
maintenance  costs,  and/or  improve  operations  control,  productivity  and  compliance. 
Projects  identified  and  brought  forward  by  CONTRACTOR  will  be  presented  to  and 
approved by the OWNER, at the discretion of the OWNER, on a case‐by‐case basis.   
 

7. Maintenance and Repair Costs. 
 
a.  Costs up to $3,000.  CONTRACTOR shall pay the costs of all individual repair parts, 
maintenance  materials,  supplies  and  outside  maintenance  service  items  (collectively, 
“M&R  Items”) up to $3,000 per event, excluding CONTRACTOR  labor costs, during the 
term of this Agreement.  The annual budget for such M&R Items costing less than $3,000 
is  included  in the annual fees to be paid to CONTRACTOR and  is  initially established as 
$80,000.00  (“M&R  Expense  Component”).    The  M&R  Expense  Component  will  be 
adjusted annually by the same percentage  in the CPI as detailed  in Section 5(b) of this 
Agreement.    Any  amount  less  than  the  M&R  Expense  Component  not  expended  by 
CONTRACTOR during a given Agreement Year shall be returned to OWNER in full within 
sixty  (60) days of  the end of  the contract year.   During any Agreement Year, amounts 
expended by CONTRACTOR which aggregate  to a  total greater  than  the M&R Expense 
Component  without  prior  written  approval  by  OWNER,  are  the  responsibility  of 
CONTRACTOR.  During any Agreement Year, amounts expended by CONTRACTOR which 
aggregate  to  a  total  greater  than  the  M&R  Expense  Component  with  prior  written 
approval by OWNER, are the responsibility of OWNER.       

 
b. Costs $3,000 and above.  Any M&R Items which cost in excess of $3,000 per event, 
excluding CONTRACTOR labor costs, shall be approved by the OWNER and paid for in their 

Page 72 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 7 of 25 

 

entirety directly by OWNER.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 7, 
CONTRACTOR shall have the right, in emergency situations, to authorize the expenditure 
of monies  for M&R  Items where the  failure to do so would have an adverse effect, as 
determined by CONTRACTOR, on the Facilities or the OWNER Equipment. 
 

      8.    Chemical Costs.  CONTRACTOR shall pay the costs of all chemicals during the term of this 
Agreement.  The annual budget for chemicals is included in the annual fees to be paid to 
CONTRACTOR and is initially established at $17,925.00 (“Chemical Expense Component”).  
The Chemical  Expense Component will be  adjusted  annually by  the  same percentage 
change in the CPI as detailed in Section 5(b) of this Agreement.  Any amount less than the 
Chemical Expense Component not expended by CONTRACTOR during a given Agreement 
Year shall be returned to OWNER in full within sixty (60) days of the end of the Agreement 
Year.  During any Agreement Year, amounts expended by CONTRACTOR which aggregate 
to  a  total  greater  than  the  Chemical  Expense  Component  without  prior  written 
authorization by the Owner, are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR.  Chemical costs shall 
be  the  actual  amount  paid  for  chemicals  by  the  Contractor,  including  any  discounts 
received  by  the  Contractor.  During  any  Agreement  Year,  amounts  expended  by 
CONTRACTOR which aggregate to a total greater than the Chemical Expense Component 
with prior written authorization by the OWNER, are the responsibility of OWNER. 

 

       9.   Quality of Performance.   CONTRACTOR’s objective  is to provide  its OWNERs with high 
quality  operational  services,  consistent  with  industry  standards.  To  that  end, 
CONTRACTOR seeks an operational partnership with  the OWNER  to achieve a  level of 
performance consistent with industry standards and expects to be held accountable for 
delivering performance against such standards. If at any time the OWNER is less than fully 
satisfied,  than  it  should  be  communicated  to  CONTRACTOR,  and  if  the  OWNER  is 
ultimately not  satisfied with CONTRACTOR’s performance,  the OWNER may  request a 
change in the management team overseeing its project. 

 
10. Representative.   No  later  than  the Commencement Date.   OWNER  shall designate  in 

writing to CONTRACTOR, the name and title of OWNER’s authorized representative(s) for 
all purposes of this Agreement.   
 

11. Warranties and Guarantees.  CONTRACTOR will assist OWNER in OWNER’s enforcement 
of  OWNER  Equipment  warranties  and  guarantees,  if  any.    CONTRACTOR  will  be 
responsible  for  compliance  with  the  terms  of  warranties  on  any  new  equipment 
purchased after the Effective Date. 

 
     12.  Termination.  Either party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement upon material 

breach by the other Party, provided, however, such terminating Party first provide written 
notice of such breach to the other Party and such breach is not cured within ninety (90) 
days from the date of the notice or, in the event that a cure is not capable within such 
ninety (90) day period, such cure is not commenced within such ninety (90) day period. 

      

Page 73 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 8 of 25 

 

     13.  Hold Harmless.  CONTRACTOR agrees to and shall defend, indemnify and hold OWNER, 
its elected and appointed officers, and its employees harmless from any liabilities, claims, 
damages or  fines  (including  attorney’s  fees)  for personal  injury or property damaged 
caused by, or arising from the negligence of CONTRACTOR, unless such claims, damages 
or fines are caused or contributed by the failure of (i) the water or wastewater influent to 
meet the criteria established as set forth on the Exhibit B‐1 hereto; or (ii) by the presence 
of any hazardous, toxic or radioactive substances within the Facilities.  The obligation of 
CONTRACTOR  to  hold  OWNER  harmless  is  subject  to  the  comparative  responsibility 
provision of this Agreement. 

 
      14.  Comparative Responsibility.  In the event that both CONTRACTOR and OWNER are found 

by an independent fact finder to be negligent, and the negligence of both is the proximate 
cause of  such claim  for damage  for personal  injury or property damage,  then,  in  that 
event, each party shall be responsible for the portion of the liability equal to such party’s 
comparative share of the total negligence. 

 
     15.  Limitations of Liabilities.  Each party agrees that it shall not assert any claim for indirect, 

incidental,  consequential,  special,  punitive  or  exemplary  damages  including,  but  not 
limited to, claims for lost revenue, profit or business reputation, whether based intort or 
contract.   Each Party however, reserves the right to seek direct damages  in an amount 
not  to exceed  the  insurance  limits specified above  for covered claims, or  then annual 
CONTRACTOR Compensation for any uninsured claims. 

 
     16.  Miscellaneous. 
 

a.   Waiver.  The failure on the part of either Party to insist in any one or more cases 
upon the strict performance of any of the provisions of this Agreement, or to exercise any 
right, remedy or option herein contained, shall not be constructed as a waiver of such 
provisions, right, remedy or option in any other case or similar cases.  Any waiver shall be 
in writing, and signed by the Party to be charged, in order to be enforceable. 
 
b.   Assignments.   The Agreement shall not be assigned by either Party without the 
prior written consent of the other Party. 
 
c.   Nondiscrimination.    CONTRACTOR  agrees  and  shall  refrain  from  unlawful 
discrimination  in employment and undertakes affirmative action to ensure a quality of 
employment opportunity; shall comply with procedures and requirements of the State 
Human Right Department’s regulations concerning equal employment opportunity and 
Affirmative Action; and shall provide such information, with respect to its employees and 
applicants for employment and assistance as the Department may reasonably request. 
 
d.   Relationship  and  Confidentiality.    It  is  understood  that  the  relationship  of 
CONTRACTOR to OWNER is that of an independent CONTRACTOR and that none of the 
employees or agents of CONTRACTOR shall be considered employee OWNER.   OWNER 

Page 74 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 9 of 25 

 

agrees the OWNER will not talk to any employee of CONTRACTOR regarding employment 
with  OWNER  without  having  received  the  prior  permission  of  CONTRACTOR,  which 
permission  shall  not  be  unreasonably  withheld,  conditioned  or  delayed.    Except  as 
otherwise required by applicable law, the terms of this Agreement shall be confidential 
and not disclosed to third parties absent mutual consent, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 
 
e.   Force Majeure.  Each Party’s performance under this Agreement shall be excused 
if the Party is unable to perform because of actions due to causes beyond its reasonable 
control, including but not limited to Acts of God, the acts of civil or military authority, any 
act of national or international terrorism or bioterrorism, floods, epidemics, quarantine 
restrictions, riots, and strikes.  In the event of any such force majeure, the Party unable 
to perform shall notify the other Party as soon as practicable, but  in any event, within 
twenty‐four (24) hours of the existence of such forces majeure and shall be required to 
resume performances of  its obligations under this Agreement upon the termination of 
the aforementioned  force majeure.    If any act or event of  force majeure occurs which 
presents  CONTRACTOR  performing  this  Agreement,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use 
commercially reasonable efforts to renew its performance under the Agreement as soon 
as practicable after the ending of the act or event of force majeure.  In addition, if a force 
majeure event occurs and CONTRACTOR’s cost of performing its obligations pursuant to 
this Agreement  is adversely affected by such event, CONTRACTOR shall be entitled  to 
price relief from the OWNER in an amount equal to the reasonable increase in the cost of 
performance due to the force majeure event. 
 
 f.    Authority to Contract.  Each Party warrants and represents that it has authority 
to enter into this Agreement. 
 
g.    Severability.  If any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement are held by any 
court of  competent  jurisdiction  to  contravene or  to be  invalid under  the  laws of  any 
political body having jurisdiction over the subject matter hereof, such contravention or 
invalidity shall not invalidate the entire Agreement, but instead, the Agreement shall be 
construed as if not containing the particular provision or provisions held to be illegal or 
invalid,  the  rights  and  obligations  of  the  Parties  shall  be  construed  and  enforced 
accordingly, and  this Agreement  shall  thereupon  remain  in  full  force and effect as  so 
construed. 
 
h.   Notices.   Notice under this Agreement shall be deemed  to have been properly 
given  when  addressed  as  provided  below,  and  shall  be  deemed  effective  (except  as 
otherwise provided  in this Agreement) (i) upon receipt or receipt and refusal  if sent by 
first class mail,  return receipt  requested,  registered or certified;  (ii) business day after 
being  sent  by  overnight  courier  service;  or  (iii) when  received  if  sent  by  facsimile  as 
confirmed by an electronically generated facsimile confirmation.   Each Party shall have 
the right to change its address by giving the other Party written notice thereof. 
 

Page 75 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 10 of 25 

 

Notices required to be given to OWNER shall be addressed to: 
 
  City of Galena 
  101 Green Street 
  Galena, IL  61036 
  Attention:  Mark Moran, City Administrator  
 

   

Page 76 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 11 of 25 

 

Notices required to be given to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to: 
 
  USW Utility Group 
  1406 Central Avenue 
  Fort Dodge, Iowa 50501 

Attention: Jeffrey L. DuPont, Vice President 
 

With copies (which shall not constitute notice) to: 
 
U.S. Water Services Corporation / USW Utility Group 

  4939 Cross Bayou Blvd 
  New Port Richey, FL 34652 

Attention: General Manager 
 

     i.   Entire Agreement, Counterparts and Amendments.   This Agreement,  together 
with  the  Exhibits  and  Appendices  as  incorporated  herein,  shall  constitute  the  entire 
Agreement between the Parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes 
all other agreements,  representations and understandings, both written and oral, any 
except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.  This Agreement may be executed 
in any number of counterpart copies, each of which shall be deemed as original, but which 
together shall constitute a single instrument.  No amendment, modifications or alteration 
of the terms of provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless the same shall be in 
writing  and  dully  executed  by  the  Parties  hereto,  except  that  any  of  the  terms  or 
provisions of this Agreement may be waived in writing at any time by the Party which is 
entitled  to  the benefits of  such waived  terms or provisions.   No waiver of any of  the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to or shall constitute a waiver of any other 
provision hereof (whether similar).  No delay on the part of any Party in exercising any 
right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof. 

 
j.   No Third‐Party Beneficiaries.   This Agreement  is not  intended  to and shall not 
confer upon any other person, other than the Parties hereto, any rights or remedies with 
respect to the subject matter hereof including. 
 
k.    Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Illinois.  The venue for any litigation of any disputes between 
the Parties arising out of this Agreement shall be Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

 
 

 

 
   

 
 
 

 
 

Page 77 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 12 of 25 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 
and year first above written by their duly authorized officers or representatives. 
 
 
CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
 
Name:  ___________________________________ 
 
Title:     ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
USW UTILITY GROUP 
 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
 
Name:  ___________________________________ 
 
Title:     ___________________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
   

Page 78 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 13 of 25 

 

EXHIBIT A 
Facilities 

 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant located at: 
1989 East Cross Road 
 

 1952 (Reconstructed in 2002) Lift Station located at: 
114 Meeker Street 
 

 Industrial Park Lift Station located at: 
11326 Technical Drive 
 

 Pluym Lift Station located at: 
Oldenburg Lane 
 

 Cobblestone Lift Station located at: 
Oldenburg Lane 
 

 Bouthillier Lift Station located at: 
Bouthillier Street & Park Avenue 
 

 Hospital Lift Station located at: 
Norris Lane 
 

 Water Street Storm Water Pumping Station located at: 
Water Street between Green Street and Perry Street 
 

 Riverside Drive Storm Water Pumping Station located at: 
Riverside Drive between Spring Street and flood gates 
 

 #5 Well House located at: 
1238 Franklin Street 
 

 #6 Well House located at: 
Gear Street 
 

 #7 Well House located at: 
Industrial Park 
 

 Industrial Park water booster station located at: 
Highway 20 and Franklin Street 
 

   

Page 79 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 14 of 25 

 

 Bouthillier water booster station located at: 
307 Bouthillier Street 
 

 Water Storage Facilities located at: 
1238 Franklin Street 
Dodge & Hill Streets 
Horseshoe Mound 
Industrial Park 
 

 Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system for above facilities 
 

 368kW solar array, 3‐100kW inverters, and solar building with controls 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 80 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 15 of 25 

 

 
EXHIBIT B 

CONTRACTOR SERVICES 
 

The  CONTRACTOR  Services  to  be  provided  by  the  CONTRACTOR  during  the  term  of  the 
Agreement shall include and be limited to the following: 
  

a. Facilities Operation.  CONTRACTOR shall use commercially reasonable efforts to operate 
and manage the Facilities so that the effluent/finished water discharge meets or exceeds 
the wastewater effluent/finished water requirements established by the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency  (“USEPA”)  and  the  Illinois Environmental Protection 
Agency (“IEPA”) under the permits issued by such authority so long as the influent does 
not exceed the design  limitations set  forth on Exhibit B‐1  (“Facilities Maximum Design 
Parameters).  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws 
and  regulations  as  they pertain  to  the  Facilities.   CONTRACTOR will pay  all  fines  and 
surcharges resulting solely from the negligence or intentional acts of the CONTRACTOR, 
which may be  imposed by the regulatory agency having  jurisdiction  for effluent/water 
quality  violations  associated  with  the  permits  issued  with  respect  to  the  Facilities; 
provided, however, that the CONTRACTOR shall have no such obligation in the event that 
such violations are a result of influent violations at the Facilities Design Limitations or the 
presence of hazardous or toxic substances.  
 

b. Water Distribution and Water Wells System.  CONTRACTOR will operate, maintain and 
manage the Water Distribution System and the Water Wells to extend their useful life, to 
provide  maximum  capacities,  to  prevent  unnecessary  damage  to  public  and  private 
property, to minimize inconveniences by handling interruptions in service and to prevent 
public health hazards.   The CONTRACTOR will provide 24‐hour per day, seven days per 
week  emergency  service  and  will  use  commercially  reasonable  efforts  to  maintain 
uninterrupted service to customers.  The CONTRACTOR will provide proper and prudent 
notification to the City and its residents during emergency situations. 

   
The  Water  Distribution  System  and  Water  Wells  will  be  operated,  maintained  and 
managed in the following manner: 
 

1. Identify sources of pollution within the system through inspection, monitoring and 
investigation;  

2. CONTRACTOR  will  schedule  and  manage  a  leak  detection  survey  on  the 
distribution system to ensure safe transportation and storage of water throughout 
the system in compliance with the Safe Drinking Water Act and its amendments;   

3. CONTRACTOR will  implement a valve operating the  inspection program and will 
exercise,  inspect a minimum of  fifty  (50) valves per year.   All activities shall be 
recorded and communicated to the OWNER;   

4. CONTRACTOR will assist the OWNER with the maintenance and improvement of 
the OWNER’s GIS program by documenting the activities and results of their leak 

Page 81 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 16 of 25 

 

survey,  valve  maintenance,  and  other  maintenance  and  improvements  to  the 
Facilities; 

5. CONTRACTOR  will  provide  commercially  reasonable  documentation,  including 
photographs  and  locations,  in  electronic  format whenever  possible,  of  repairs 
made within the water distribution system; 

6. Assist the OWNER with the maintenance of the water system at the swimming 
pool, ornamental fountains, outdoor drinking fountains, and storm water pump 
stations; 

7. Maintain a high standard of physical appearance for the entire water system at all 
times  which  will  include  general  touch  up  painting.  CONTRACTOR  shall  also 
perform  grass  mowing  and  weed  control  at  all  water  system  facilities.  
CONTRACTOR will maintain the fire hydrants in a manner to extend their useful 
life and at a high standard of physical appearance;  

8. CONTRACTOR will provide OWNER with documentation,  inspection  reports, or 
reports  when  outside  vendors  perform  major  work  or  repairs  on  OWNER 
equipment or facilities.  

 
c. Wastewater Collection System.   CONTRACTOR will operate, maintain and manage the 

Wastewater Collection System in such a manner as to extend the useful life, to provide 
maximum capacities, to prevent unnecessary damage to public and private property, to 
minimize inconveniences by handling interruptions in service and to prevent public health 
hazards.   CONTRACTOR will provide 24‐hour per day,  seven‐day‐per‐week emergency 
service and will use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain uninterrupted service to 
customers.  
 
The  Wastewater  Collection  System  will  be  operated,  maintained  and  managed  in  a 
manner to: 
 

1. Identify  sources  of  problems  within  the  sewer  system  through  inspection, 
monitoring and investigation; 

2. Clean, maintain  and  repair  sanitary  sewers,  force mains  and  lift  stations  on  a 
regular  basis  to  ensure  that  wastewaters  are  transported  to  wastewater 
treatment facilities in compliance with NPDES permits; 

3. Prevent  sewage  from  bypassing  to  waters  of  the  State  and  to  protect  the 
Collection System from flooding due to high water, in accordance with the Water 
Pollution Control Acts Amendments, Public Law 92‐500 and the Clean Water Act 
Amendment; 

4. Eliminate potential sources of odors; 
5. CONTRACTOR shall  implement a customer service program to  inspect all sewer 

related customer complaints and respond to the customer or the consultant on 
the results of these inspections; 

6. Maintain a high standard of physical appearance for the entire wastewater system 
at all times; 

7. Implement a preventative maintenance program; and 

Page 82 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 17 of 25 

 

8. CONTRACTOR  will  assist  the  City  with  the  development,  implementation,  and 
management of an inflow and infiltration (“I/I”) program, FMC will assist OWNER’s 
personnel or outside vendors with manhole location for inspection, surveying, or 
cataloging,  CONTRACTOR  will  assist  the  OWNER  with  the  OWNER’s  the 
development,  implementation,  and  management  of  a  GIS  program  to  record 
information and location of water and sewer infrastructure; 

9. CONTRACTOR will provide commercially reasonable documentation, in electronic 
format  when  possible,  of  repairs  made  within  the  sanitary  sewer  collection 
system; 

10. CONTRACTOR will  provide OWNER with  documentation,  inspection  results,  or 
reports  when  outside  vendors  perform  major  work  or  repairs  on  OWNER’s 
equipment or facilities. 

 
d. Project Management and Staffing.  CONTRACTOR shall monitor the Facilities on a seven 

(7)  day  per week,  twenty‐four  (24  hour  per  day  basis).   CONTRACTOR  shall  staff  the 
Facilities  with  a  Facilities  Manager,  experienced  in  the  areas  of  water/wastewater 
treatment,  process  control,  water/wastewater  laboratory  analysis,  and  maintenance 
procedures for water/wastewater treatment facilities and three other fulltime staff.  An 
allowance of $12,000 is also included in the compensation to the Contractor for a part‐
time or seasonal employee(s).  All staff shall work exclusively for the Galena contract and 
not be shared with other contracts. The Facilities’ staff shall have required  licenses or 
waivers  necessary  to  lawfully  operate  the  Facilities.    In  the  event  that  CONTRACTOR 
replaces the Facilities Manager during the term of the Agreement, the OWNER will have 
the ability  to provide  input and  review  the qualifications of  the new Facility Manager 
CONTRACTOR selects prior to the hiring of the new Facility Manager. 

 
e. Project  Support.    CONTRACTOR  shall  as  required  and  determined  by  CONTRACTOR, 

provide  on‐call,  backup  expertise  in  operations,  management,  and  maintenance 
applications to ensure compliance with this Agreement. 

 
f. Maintenance Management.    CONTRACTOR  shall  institute  a  preventive  maintenance 

program for all OWNER Equipment and Facilities.   Record maintained by CONTRACTOR 
shall include the history of maintenance and the schedule of programmed maintenance 
throughout the term of this Agreement for each item of OWNER Equipment and Facilities.  
Records shall be the property of the OWNER and may be obtained by the OWNER upon 
reasonable prior notice and upon termination or expiration of the Agreement. Standard 
operating and maintenance procedures will be established by CONTRACTOR, consistent 
with industry‐wide practices, for each major piece of OWNER Equipment and Facilities.  
Contractor  shall  also  develop  and  maintain  a  system  for  tracking  the  useful  life  and 
replacement schedule for each major piece of OWNER equipment and Facilities. 
 

g. Operational  Costs  and  Expenses.    CONTRACTOR  shall  pay  all  costs  of  CONTRACTOR 
employees,  fuels, electricity,  chemicals,  services,  spare parts, materials, maintenance, 
sludge disposal, repairs and expendable supplies required  in the normal operation and 

Page 83 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 18 of 25 

 

maintenance of the Facilities, except, and in the event, such expenses are further limited 
within this Agreement. 
 

h. Corrective  Action.    In  the  event  tht  the  effluent  quality  is  not  in  compliance  with 
regulatory  requirements,  CONTRACTOR will  submit  a  report  to  OWNER  outlining  the 
proposed corrective action and a schedule. 
 

i. Hazard Substance.  In the event that any hazardous substance is received at the facilities, 
CONTRACTOR shall notify OWNER and assist OWNER in the removal and/or reduction of 
such hazardous substance.  In the event that any hazardous substance cannot be treated 
or removed using the processes and equipment provided, and  if effluent parameter(s) 
affected  by  any  hazardous  substance  listed  in  the  permits  are  exceeded,  and  the 
hazardous substance was not the result of CONTRACTOR’s negligence, CONTRACTOR shall 
not  be  responsible  for  permit  compliance  or  additional  operational  costs  until  the 
hazardous  substance  is  removed  from  the  Facilities  and  the  Facilities  are  completely 
recovered and capable of generating effluent quality within design parameters.   For all 
purposes  of  this  Exhibit  B  and  the  Agreement  to  which  it  is  attached,  “hazardous 
substance” shall mean (a) any petroleum, petroleum products, by‐products or breakdown 
products,  radioactive  materials,  asbestos‐containing  materials  or  polychlorinated 
biphenyls; or (b) any chemical, material or substance defined or regulated as hazardous 
or as a pollutant, contaminant or waste under any statue, law, ordinance, by‐law, decree, 
regulation, code. Order, rule or judgment of any governmental authority having the force 
of law. 

 
j. Biological Toxic Substance.  In the event any biological toxic substance is received at the 

facilities, CONTRACTOR  shall notify OWNER and  assist OWNER  in  the  removal  and/or 
reduction at the Facilities, CONTRACTOR shall notify OWNER and assist OWNER  in the 
removal  and/or  reduction  of  such  biological  toxic  substance.    In  the  event  that  any 
biological  toxic  substance  cannot  be  treated  or  removed  using  the  processes  and 
equipment  provided,  and  if  effluent  parameter  (s)  affected  by  the  biological  toxic 
substance listed in the permits are exceeded, CONTRACTOR shall not be responsible for 
permit compliance or additional operational costs until the biological toxic substance is 
removed from the Facilities and the Facilities are completely recovered.  For all purposes 
of this Exhibit B and the Agreement to which it is attached, “biological toxic substance” 
shall  mean  any  substance  or  combination  of  substances  contained  in  the  Facilities’ 
influent in sufficiently high concentrations so as to interfere with the biological processes 
necessary for the removal of the organic and chemical constituents of the wastewater.  
The  rebuttal  presumption  shall  be  that  any  biological  toxic  substance  proven  to  be 
present in the Facilities entered with the influent.  Biological toxic substances include, but 
are not limited to, heavy metals, phenols, cyanides, pesticides, herbicides, acids, caustics, 
chlorine, quaternary ammonia and other cleaning sanitizing compounds. 

 
k. Handling  and  Disposal  of  Contaminated  Sludge.    If  the  influent  contains  abnormal, 

hazardous or biologically toxic substances, the sludge from such influent shall be deemed 

Page 84 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 19 of 25 

 

contaminated.  CONTRACTOR shall make every effort to isolate such contaminated sludge 
consistent  with  current  USEPA  and  IEPA  guidelines.    OWNER  shall  reimburse 
CONTRACTOR for express directly related to disposal of the contaminated sludge. 
 

If any sludge from the wastewater treatment plant is classified as “hazardous waste” as 
defined by the USEPA, which means that the regulatory agencies require the sludge to be 
transported to a designated hazardous waste landfill, CONTRACTOR shall notify OWNER 
and request permission  to  transport  the sludge  to a designated  landfill.   OWNER shall 
reimburse CONTRACTOR  for  the  actual  costs of  transport,  landfill  fees  and  any other 
verifiable out‐of‐pocket expenses associated with  the handling and disposal of sludge.  
CONTRACTOR  shall  comply  with  ANSCI,  OSHA,  the  industrial  Commission  and  other 
federal, state and  local  laws and regulations applicable  to  the operation of  trucks and 
other miscellaneous equipment used for the disposal of said sludge.  No vehicle shall be 
overloaded. 
 

l. Sludge  Management  and  Sludge  Disposal.    CONTRACTOR  shall  be  responsible  for 
handling  and  disposing  of  sludge  residuals  generated  by  the  facilities  in  a  manner 
consistent  with  all  applicable  regulations  of  the  USEPA  and  the  IEPA,  OWNER  is 
responsible for providing the equipment used for sludge disposal. 

 
m. Testing Laboratory Analysis.   CONTRACTOR shall perform the sampling and analysis of 

the appropriate influent and effluent as outlined in OWNER’s permit, and as required for 
the proper operation of the Facilities.  CONTRACTOR shall prepare all permit monitoring 
and operations reports and submit them to OWNER for final review and sign‐off prior to 
the appropriate regulatory agency having jurisdiction over the Facilities. 

 
n. Reporting.   CONTRACTOR will submit  internal reports relating to the operations of the 

Facilities to owner and assist OWNER in OWNER’s reporting requirements to local, state, 
and federal regulatory for representing OWNER with the relevant regulatory agencies and 
advise  OWNER  of  all  meetings,  hearings  and  relevant  related  information  for  the 
Facilities.  Upon request by CONTRACTOR, OWNER shall participate in such meetings of 
regulatory or governmental agencies as CONTRACTOR deems necessary. 

 
o. Record of Operation.  Records maintained by CONTRACTOR will be in compliance with all 

applicable law and regulations.  These records, capable of providing historical data and 
trend, will be the property of OWNER.  CONTRACTOR will maintain these records at the 
Facilities site, available during the term of this Agreement for use by authorized OWNER 
personnel. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide OWNER’s officials with access to the Facilities 
at any time upon reasonable prior notice. 

 
p. Safety.  CONTRACTOR shall administer a site‐specific safety program to include training, 

record keeping, and safety meetings, all in conformance with the OWNER safety program, 
and any requirements of the State of Illinois. 

Page 85 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 20 of 25 

 

 

q. Training.   CONTRACTOR shall  implement an ongoing  training program, with classroom 
and hands‐on training for all Facilities personnel.  Training will include Facilities operations 
and maintenance, laboratory operations and maintenance, supervisory skills and energy 
management. 

 
r. Odor Control.   CONTRACTOR will operate and maintain  the Facilities  to minimize  the 

generation of odors through an ongoing odor control program.  In the event of an odor 
generating event from the Facilities, CONTRACTOR will assist OWNER in the development 
and  implementation  of  a  corrective  action  plan  to  mitigate  the  odor  generation.  
CONTRACTOR will work with OWNER to deal in a concerned, professional manner with 
any individuals or community groups concerned with odors. 

 
s. Capital Budget  Submission.   On  an  annual basis, CONTRACTOR will provide  a  formal 

report to OWNER on CONTRACTOR’s projection of capital needs and assist OWNER with 
the preparations of the OWNER’s annual budget.  CONTRACTOR shall also, if requested, 
annually submit its recommendations regarding additions to or deletions from Owner’s 
long‐term capital program.  CONTRACTOR will submit detailed rationale for any changes 
or additions, and preliminary cost estimates. Implementations of these recommendations 
by  OWNER,  however,  is  not  a  condition  of  CONTRACTOR’s  performance  of  the 
CONTRACTOR Services.  Review and approval of these capital expenditures shall remain 
the responsibility of OWNER. 

 
t. Emergency  Response  Plan.    CONTRACTOR  will  develop,  maintain,  and  implement,  if 

necessary, an emergency response plan for the Facilities that will be in compliance with 
all applicable regulations. 

 
u. 368 kW Solar Array, 3‐100kW Inverters, and Solar Building with Control.  CONTRACTOR 

will monitor  the  solar  array,  inventors  and  controls  on  a weekly  basis  and make  the 
OWNER  aware of operational problems or  issues  that might warrant maintenance or 
repair.  CONTRACTOR will also provide grounds maintenance for the solar array to prevent 
the  growth  of  weeds  in  the  gravel  under  the  panels.    Maintenance,  repair  and 
replacement work on  the solar array equipment  itself will be  the  responsibility of  the 
OWNER 

 
v. Energy Efficiency.   CONTRACTOR shall use commercially  reasonable efforts  to  recycle, 

minimize  energy  use,  and  operate  in  an  environmentally  sustainable  manner.  
CONTRACTOR shall report regularly to OWNER to detail energy efficiency efforts. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 86 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 21 of 25 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B‐1 
Maximum Design Parameters of Facilities 

 
CONTRACTOR will operate and maintain the Water/Wastewater Facilities so the water quality 
will  meet  the  requirements  of  the  Safe  Drinking  Water  Act  and  the  effluent  meets  the 
requirements of all applicable permits. 
 
Wastewater: 
 
CONTRACTOR will be responsible for meeting the effluent quality requirements of all applicable 
permits unless one or more of the following occurs: 
 

 The  influent  to  the  treatment  plant  does  not  contain  adequate  nutrients  to  support 
operation  of  biological  process  and/or  contains  toxic  substances  which  cannot  be 
removed by existing processes and facilities. 

 Toxic discharges into the sewer system in volumes which would make compliance with 
discharge limits substantially impossible. 

 The flow,  influent BOD, influent TSS and/or  influent Ammonia  is greater than the plant 
design in parameters, which are the following: 

 
Average Flow    1.171 MGD 
Peak Flow    4.241 MGD 
Influent BOD    2,240 lbs/day 
Influent TSS    2,660 lbs/day 
Influent Ammonia     400 lbs/day 
 

 If the Treatment Plant can operate only at reduced capacity due to construction activities, 
fire,  flood,  adverse  weather  conditions,  labor  disputes  or  other  causes  beyond 
CONTRACTOR’s control. 

 
Water: 
 
CONTRACTOR will be responsible for meeting the finished water quality requirements of the Safe 
Drinking Water Act unless one or more of the following occurs: 
 

 The raw water to the treatment plant contains toxic substances which cannot be removed 
by existing process and facilities; 

Page 87 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 22 of 25 

 

 Toxic discharges into the water supply system in volumes which would make compliance 
with water quality limits substantially impossible; 

 The peak production,  influent manganese  is greater than the plant design parameters, 
which are the following: 

 
Peak Production Rate   3.89 MGD 
 

 If  the  Treatment  Plant  can  operate  only  at  a  reduced  capacity  due  to  construction 
activities, fire, flood, adverse weather conditions, labor disputes or other causes beyond 
CONTRACTOR’s control; and 

 In  the event  that  influent raw water quality characteristics change when compared  to 
current raw water from the existing ground water supply. 

 
Certified Public Water Supply Operator 
   
             Name of Certified Operator:    (Insert Name) 
  Operator 9‐digit ID number:    (Insert Number) 
  Mailing Address:      (Insert Address) 
            
  Email:                      (Insert Email) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

   

Page 88 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 23 of 25 

 

Exhibit C 
OWNER’s Equipment 

 

 Lift Station built in 1952 and reconstructed in 2002, including: 

Three (3) 20 hp Flygt submersible pumps 

Metropolitan control panel 

Olympian 12 kW stand‐by generator 

 Industrial Park Lift Station, including: 
Two (2) 20 hp Fairbanks Morse pumps 

      USCONTRACTORO Control Panel 
 

 Pluym Lift Station, including: 
Two (2) 5 hp Hydromatic submersible pumps 
Hydromatic Control Panel 
Olympian 50 kW Generator 
 

 Cobblestone Lift Station, including: 
Two (2) hp Hydromatic submersible pumps 
Hydromatic Control Pane 
Olympian 30 kW Generator 
 

 Bouthillier Lift Station, including: 
Equipment to be determined 
 

 Hospital Lift Station, including: 
Two (2) 15 hp Fairbanks Morse submersible pumps 
Control Panel 
Olympian 50 kW Generator 
 

 Storm Water Pumping Stations at Water Street and Riverside Drive 
                                  Cummins 250 kW generator 

 

 1.171 MGD wastewater treatment plant, oxidation ditch type built in 2002, comprising: 
1. Administration Building with: 

 Garage / Shop Area 

 Restroom /Locker Facilities 

 General Purpose Room 

 Office 

 SCADA Room 

 Laboratory Facilities 
   

Page 89 of 130



   APPENDIX B    

Page 24 of 25 

 

2. Screening Building with: 

 Parkson Mechanical Step Screen and Wash Press 

 Altronex SCCB Motor Control Center 
 

3. BNR / Oxidation Ditches with: 

 Two (2) EIMCO/EMU 8.5 hp BNR Mixers 

 Four (4) EIMCO 40 hp Carousel Aerators 
 

4. Two (2) 250,000 gallon US Filter clarifiers with aluminum Covers 
 
5. Biosolids Control Building with: 

 Komline Sanderson 1.5 meter gravity belt thickener / belt 
filter press 

 Parkson biosolids conveyors 

 Dynablend polymer feed system 

 Altronex SCCA Motor Control Center 

 One (1) Sump Pump 

 Two (2) Hayword Gordon model XCS5A WAS Pumps 

 Three (3) Hayword Gordon model XCS5A RAS Pumps 

 Three (3) Netzsch progressive cavity BST Pumps 

 Two (2) Crane Deming Plant Water System 

 Metropolitan Industries Non‐Potable Water System 

 Potable Water System 

 Site Well (non‐potable) 

 Three (3) Garner Denver Positive Displacement Blowers for 
Digesters 

 
6.  Two (2) Aerobic Digesters with Sanitiare Fine Bubble Diffusers 
 
7. Biosolids Storage Building 
 
8. Trojan Ultraviolet Disinfection 
 
9. Influent Pumping Station with: 

 Two (2) 25 hp Fairbanks Morse Submersible Pump 

 Two (2) 75 hp Flygt Submersible Pumps 
  
10. 368kW solar array, 3‐100 kW inverters, and solar building with controls 

 

 Wastewater Collection System, consists of approximately 28.2 miles of gravity sewer 
that is predominantly eight‐inch with some six‐, ten‐, twelve‐, fifteen‐ eighteen‐ and 
thirty‐inch pipes of  clay,  concrete and PVC. The  system also  contains 1.6 miles of 
sanitary force main. 

Page 90 of 130



Appendix C 

Five‐Year Contract Cost Proposals

Woodward & Curran Inframark, LLC People Service
MI2 Operating 

Systems
USW Utility Group Veolia

Personnel & Operations 2,318,065$                 1,778,820$                1,832,184.60$           1,579,468$                1,579,522$                2,038,386$               

‐$                           

Maintenance & Repair 400,000$                     400,000$                    412,000.00$              419,422$                    400,000$                    411,276$                   

‐$                           

Chemicals 95,565$                       89,625$                      92,313.75$                87,601$                      89,628$                      92,151$                     

‐$                           

Utilities 743,279$                     700,000$                    721,000.00$              630,000$                    700,000$                    779,655$                   

‐$                           

Outside Services 272,825$                     230,020$                    236,920.60$              116,801$                    85,500$                      99,229$                     

‐$                           

Other 72,735$                       49,660$                      51,149.80$                119,456$                    173,804$                    81,638$                     

‐$                           

Overhead & Fee 981,779$                     442,925$                    456,212.75$              212,365$                    299,344$                    376,935$                   

TOTAL 4,884,248$                 3,691,050$                3,801,782$                3,165,113$                3,327,798$                3,879,270$               

3% CPI Assumption

Item

Proposed Contracts

Page 91 of 130



Appendix D

10‐Year Contract Cost Proposals

Woodward & Curran Inframark, LLC People Service
MI2 Operating 

Systems
USW Utility Group Veolia

Personnel & Operations 4,891,600$                 3,557,640$                3,664,369.20$           3,410,504$                3,159,043$                4,222,433$               

‐$                           

Maintenance & Repair 800,000$                     800,000$                    824,000.00$              905,646$                    800,000$                    851,941$                   

‐$                           

Chemicals 201,662$                     179,250$                    184,627.50$              189,154$                    179,256$                    190,888$                   

‐$                           

Utilities 1,568,473$                 1,400,000$                1,442,000.00$           1,260,000$                1,400,000$                1,615,023$               

‐$                           

Outside Services 575,718$                     460,040$                    473,841.20$              114,639$                    171,000$                    205,549$                   

‐$                           

Other 153,486$                     76,520$                      78,815.60$                257,937$                    347,607$                    169,110$                   

‐$                           

Overhead & Fee 2,071,758$                 875,850$                    902,125.50$              458,555$                    598,688$                    780,806$                   

TOTAL 10,262,697$               7,349,300$                7,569,779$                6,596,435$                6,655,594$                8,035,750$               

3% CPI Assumption

Proposed Contracts

Item

Page 92 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    May 2, 2019 

RE:    Archery Deer Hunting Program  
 
January 20 marked the end of the inaugural Archery Deer Hunting Program.  The program was an 
effort to better control the deer population after a January 2018 aerial count located 136 deer in 
the city limits.  The Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) has suggested that 40‐80 
deer would be a reasonable biological carrying capacity in the Galena city limits.  I am writing to 
recap the first year of the program and request direction for the future. 
 
Recap 
The first year of the program began in May 2018 with the presentation of the deer hunting 
program proposal and the deer hunting ordinance.  Numerous preparatory activities and public 
notifications occurred thereafter and up to the beginning of the hunting season in October.  The 
full program schedule from the first year is included as Appendix A.   
 
Prior to the start of the hunt, the city council approved five hunting sites or private property and 
four hunting sites on city‐owned property.  Twelve hunters successfully completed a bow 
shooting proficiency test qualifying them for the hunting program.  The hunters selected their 
hunting site in the order their names were drawn in a lottery.  Each hunter could only hunt the 
site he selected.  Six of the hunting sites had a single hunter.  Three of the hunting sites had two 
hunters. 
 
The archery hunting season opened October 1, 2018 and ended January 20, 2019.  Each time a 
hunter planned to hunt, the hunter was responsible for contacting the police department in 
advance of the hunting.  The call log of all planned hunting activity as recorded by the Police 
Department is provided as Appendix B.  
 
Results 
A total of 22 deer were taken during the season from five of the hunting sites.  Twenty of the 
deer were doe and two were buck (a hunter could only take a buck after taking at least two doe).  
A map is included as Appendix C showing the number of deer taken at each location.  Five 
hunters did not take any deer.  Four of those hunters did not hunt.  A complete list of the hunting 
activity resulting in the taking of deer is shown in Appendix D.   

Page 93 of 130



2 of 3 

Hunters reported that each deer that was taken was killed with a single arrow.  In every case, the 
arrow was retrieved, and the deer was retrieved on the hunting site.  There were no reports of 
wounded or deceased deer on any property outside the hunting sites.  No complaints were 
received from the public about hunting activity during the hunting season.   
 
Deer Count 
After the hunting season concluded, a count of the deer in the city limits was conducted by 
helicopter on February 19, 2019.  City staffer, Matt Oldenburg, and DNR staffer, Kenneth 
Delahunt conducted in the count.  A total of 211 deer were counted inside the city limits.  This 
was an increase of 75 from the 136 counted inside the city limits in January 2018.  I am attaching 
a map as Appendix E showing the locations where the deer were spotted.    
 
Deer Incidents 
Since 2010, the Police Department has tracked reports of deer involved in accidents with 
vehicles, found deceased, injured where euthanizing is required, and injured but unable to be 
located.  The total reported incidents for each year and the percent change from year to year is 
shown in Table 1 below.  In 2018, there were 38 reported incidents.  This represents a decline 
from a high of 55 in 2016.  The full report may be found in Appendix F.  
 

Table 1. Reported Deer Incidents: 2010‐2018 
 

 
Year 

Reported 
Incidents 

Percent 
Change  

2010  17   

2011  20  18% 

2012  22  10% 

2013  27  23% 

2014  24  ‐11% 

2015  39  63% 

2016  55  41% 

2017  43  ‐22% 

2018  38  ‐12% 

 
DNR Input 
After completing inaugural archery hunting program and the second annual deer count, I 
contacted Tim Preuss, Urban Deer Project Manager for the DNR.  I shared with him the history of 
the deer issue in Galena, the results of the first year of archery hunting, and the deer count.  
Preuss thought the first year of the archery program had good results and could be continued 
with similar success.  He also stressed that the approach to deer management must be 
development and carried out locally.  
 
Future Hunting 
A decision is needed from the city council about how to proceed with deer population 
management in 2019.  Based on the experience from the first year of the program and the 

Page 94 of 130



3 of 3 

feedback from the DNR, I offer the following suggestions should you decide to continue the 
hunting program in 2019‐20. 
 

1. Renew the current hunting sites with owner consent. 
 

2. Accept applications for new hunting sites with an emphasis on areas where deer were 
located during the count.  I believe that finding new sites will be challenging because of 
the minimum 3‐acre requirement and the mandatory hunting distance of 100 yards from 
a residence without owner consent. 

 
3. Offer each hunter who successfully hunted his site the first option for hunting the site in 

in 2019‐20. 
 

4. Open the program to hunters outside of Galena if there are approved hunting sites 
without hunters. 

 

5. Consider waiving the hunting proficiency test for hunters who qualified in 2018.  Perhaps 
require proficiency testing every third year for hunters who already qualified. 

 
6. Reimburse hunters for the cost of the IDNR tag for each deer taken.  The cost would be 

$15.50 per tag.  Based on this year’s hunt, the cost of reimbursing hunters would have 
been $341.   

 
Schedule 
If the council decides to continue the archery hunting program, I recommend following the 
schedule set forth in Table 2 below. 
 

Table 2.  Proposed 2019‐20 Archery Deer Hunting Schedule 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I look forward to your discussion and decisions.   Please let me know if you have any questions.   

#  Activity  Start Date  End Date 

1  Private hunting site application period  June 1  July 1 

2  Hunter Permit application period   June 1  July 1 

3  Mail letters to property owners within 100 yards of proposed 
hunting sites inviting comments at July 22 city council meeting 

July 12  July 12 

4  Approval of city‐owned and private hunting sites by city 
council 

July 22  July 22 

5  Hunter proficiency qualification   August 1  August 1 

6  Lottery for new hunters to select Hunting Areas   August 1  August 1 

7  Hunter certification deadline, including submission of Illinois 
license, habitat stamp, and permit(s)/tag(s) 

September 13  September 13 

8  Mail letters to property owners within 100 yards of hunting 
areas giving notice of hunting area and season dates 

September 20  September 20 

9  Archery hunting season  October 1  January 19, 
2020 

Page 95 of 130



Appendix A 
 

 2018‐19 Archery Deer Hunting Program Schedule 
 

 

  Activity  Start Date  End Date 
1  Presented proposed Archery Deer Hunting program to city 

council 
 

May 29  May 29  

2  First reading of deer hunting ordinance to permit deer 
hunting by bow and arrow or crossbow within city limits as 
part of an approved deer hunting program 
 

May 29   May 29 

3  Approved deer hunting program guidelines and the deer 
hunting ordinance  
 

June 11  June 11 

4  Application period for property owners to submit 
applications for deer hunting on private property 
 

June 11  July 9 

5  Application period for Hunter Permits to allow qualified 
hunters to deer hunt at approved sites within city limits 
 

June 11  July 9 

6  Mailed letters to property owners within 100 yards of 
proposed hunting sites inviting comments at July 23 city 
council meeting 
 

July 16  July 16 

7  Approved of city‐owned and private hunting sites by city 
council 
 

July 23  July 23 

8  Conducted two hunter proficiency qualifications 
 

August 1  August 9 

9  Conducted a lottery for hunters to select Hunting Areas 
 

August 1  August 9 

10  Deadline for hunter certification, including submission of 
Illinois license, habitat stamp, and permit(s)/tag(s) 
 

September 14  September 14 

11  Mailed letters to property owners within 100 yards of 
hunting areas giving notice of hunting area and season 
dates 
 

September 17  September 17 

12  Archery hunting season 
 

October 1  January 20, 2019 

Page 96 of 130



Appendix BPage 97 of 130



Appendix BPage 98 of 130



Appendix BPage 99 of 130



Appendix BPage 100 of 130



Appendix BPage 101 of 130



Appendix BPage 102 of 130



Appendix BPage 103 of 130



Page 104 of 130



2018‐19 Galena Archery Deer Hunting Program 
 

Hunting Activity Log: Final Report 
 

Updated January 20, 2019 
 

 
No. 

Received by  Date  Hunter 
Name 

Hunting 
property 
location 

Shot 
Taken? 

Hit or 
Miss? 

Arrow
Retrieved? 

Buck/Doe Deer Tag #  Address Where 
Deer Retrieved 

Time 
Retrieved 

1  Mary Davis  10‐4‐2018  Matt Trotter  Wastewater Plant  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  029035573  Wastewater Plant  5:00 p.m. 

2  Mary Davis  10‐12‐18  Gerald Houy  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  507459238  Fulton Street  10:50 a.m. 

3  Mary Davis  10‐17‐18  Matt Trotter  Wastewater Plant  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  718713209  Wastewater Plant  5:00 p.m. 

4  Mary Davis  10‐20‐18  Joe Funston  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  762543687  Fulton Street  8:00 a.m. 

5  Lori Huntington  10‐20‐18  Casey Lange  Donegan Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  324799915  Donegan Street  6:00 p.m. 

6  Mary Davis  10‐21‐18  Jeremy Miller  Meadow View  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  326417045  Meadow View  5:00 p.m. 

7  Mary Davis  10‐23‐18  Sam Miller  Meadow View  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  561210238  Meadow View  6:00 p.m. 

8  Mary Davis  10‐29‐18  Steve Stangl  Old Landfill  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  660182635  Old Landfill  8:00 p.m. 

9  Mary Davis  10‐29‐18  Steve Stangl  Old Landfill  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  751467507  Old Landfill  5:00 p.m. 

10  Mary Davis  10‐30‐18  Matt Trotter  Wastewater Plant  1  Hit  Yes  Buck  766468821  Wastewater Plant  4:30 p.m. 

11  Mary Davis  11‐03‐18  Steve Stangl  Old Landfill  1  Hit  Yes  Buck  723992863  Old Landfill  5:50 p.m. 

12  Mary Davis  11‐09‐18  Joe Funston  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  269674222  Fulton Street  4:20 p.m. 

13  Mary Davis  11‐14‐18  Matt Trotter  Wastewater Plant  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  091668970  Wastewater Plant  4:45 p.m. 

14  Lori Huntington  11‐20‐18  Gerald Houy  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  492742242  Fulton Street  4:30 p.m. 

15  Lori Huntington  11‐22‐18  Steve Stangl  Old Landfill  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  246891949  Old Landfill  6:30 a.m. 

16  Lori Huntington  11‐26‐18  Gerald Houy  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  161819479  Fulton Street  4:05 p.m. 

17  Mary Davis  12‐5‐18  Gerald Houy  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  275090211  Fulton Street  3:00 p.m. 

18  Mary Davis  12‐11‐18  Steve Stangl  Old Landfill  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  687485235  Old Landfill  4:00 p.m. 

19  Mary Davis  12‐12‐18  Gerald Houy  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  316296847  Fulton Street  4:00 p.m. 

20  Mary Davis  12‐18‐18  Gerald Houy  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  699152989  Fulton Street  4:45 p.m. 

21  Mary Davis  1‐4‐19  Gerald Houy  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  783683063  Fulton Street  3:45 p.m. 

22  Mary Davis  1‐15‐19  Gerald Houy  Fulton Street  1  Hit  Yes  Doe  436184287  Fulton Street  5:00 p.m. 

                       
          TOTAL DEER HARVESTED 22       

 

Appendix DPage 105 of 130



Appendix E

Page 106 of 130



2010  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away 

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January  1          4  5 

February          1    1 

March              0 

April              0 

May              0 

June              0 

July              0 

August  1  1        2  4 

September  1        1  1  3 

October          1    1 

November  2  1          3 

December              0 

Total  5  2  0  0  3  7  17 

2011  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away  

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January        1    1  2 

February          1    1 

March              0 

April            1  1 

May              0 

June      1        1 

July  1    2        3 

August          1    1 

September      1        1 

October    1          1 

November  2        1    3 

December    1  1  1  1  2  6 

Total  3  2  5  2  4  4  20 

 

 

Appendix F
Page 107 of 130



2012  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away  

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January      1        1 

February    1          1 

March      1      1  2 

April              0 

May            1  1 

June              0 

July        2      2 

August          1    1 

September        1      1 

October    2    2      4 

November  2  1  1    1    5 

December  3    1        4 

Total  5  4  4  5  2  2  22 

2013  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away  

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January    1  1  3      5 

February        1      1 

March    2  1  1      4 

April          1    1 

May              0 

June  1    2        3 

July              0 

August              0 

September  1  1  1      2  5 

October  2    1  1    1  5 

November  2    1        3 

December              0 

Total  6  4  7  6  1  3  27 

 

 

Appendix F
Page 108 of 130



2014  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away  

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January    1      1    2 

February          1    1 

March  1            1 

April    2          2 

May              0 

June  1        1    2 

July      1        1 

August    1  1        2 

September  1      1  1    3 

October    1  1    1    3 

November  1  1    1  1  1  5 

December  1      1      2 

Total  5  6  3  3  6  1  24 

2015  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away  

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January  2  1  1  1    1  6 

February  1  1  1  1    2  6 

March  1  1        1  3 

April        1    1  2 

May              0 

June              0 

July  2    1  1      4 

August          1    1 

September  1          1  2 

October  2  1  1  1      5 

November  3  2  1        6 

December      1  2    1  4 

Total  12  6  6  7  1  7  39 

 

 

Appendix F
Page 109 of 130



2016  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away  

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January  1  1  2  3  1  2  10 

February  1  2  1  1  1    6 

March  3  1  1        5 

April    1  2        3 

May  1        2    3 

June  1    3  1  1    6 

July    2      1    3 

August              0 

September  1  1  2  1  1    6 

October      2  1      3 

November  1      1      2 

December  1  2  1  2  1  1  8 

Total  10  10  14  10  8  3  55 

2017  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away  

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January  1      2    1  4 

February  2  1        1  4 

March  1    1  1      3 

April  2      1  1    4 

May  1            1 

June  1            1 

July              0 

August  2      1  1    4 

September  1    1      2  4 

October  2  1    2      5 

November  2    1    3  1  7 

December  1  2    3      6 

Total  16  4  3  10  5  5  43 

 

 

Appendix F
Page 110 of 130



2018  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away  

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January 
 

 1   1           2 

February  1            1     2 

March    
 

       1  1 

April  1              1 

May      1  1  2  1  5 

June  1    1    1    3 

July  1  1  1        3 

August  1    1  1  1    4 

September      3  1      4 

October  1  1  2        4 

November  3          1  4 

December  1    2  1  1    5 

Total  10  3  12  4  6  3  38 

2019  Accident with 
report 

Accident w/ 
no report 

Reported dead/ 
found dead 

Reported injured
Put down 

Reported injured 
Ran away  

Reported injured 
Unable to locate 

Total 

January               

February               

March               

April               

May               

June               

July               

August               

September               

October               

November               

December               

Total               

 

Appendix F
Page 111 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 29, 2019 

RE:    Grant for Parking at Recreation Park 
 
 
Last fall, I submitted a grant application to construct additional parking at Recreation Park.  
Inadequate parking has been a regular complaint during busy weekends when many or all the 
pavilions are reserved for gatherings and the pool is open.  For many years, our Capital 
Improvement Plan has included a project to construct the parking, but we have not been able to 
fit the cost into our budget. 
 
I received notice last week that we have been awarded a grant of $50,000 from the Illinois 
Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity (DCEO) to construct the proposed 36 new 
parking spaces in the park.  Please see the attached pages for a picture of the project area and a 
plan of the proposed parking improvements.  The parking would be asphalt surfaced with 
concrete curb and gutter.  The grant also includes funds for planting trees. 
 
The grant is not a matching grant, so the City will not be required to commit any funds to the 
project.  With the city council approval to accept the grant, our staff would begin preparing bid 
documents with the expectation of constructing the project this fall.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
 
 

 

Page 112 of 130



 

 

 

Page 113 of 130



R
EC

R
EA

TI
O

N
 P

A
R

K

SHEET 1

N
EW

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
TA

LL
S

Page 114 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:      Andy Lewis, City Engineer      
 
DATE:      6 May 2019 
 
RE:      Replacement of Fire Hydrants – Approval of Quotes 
 
Request for quotes (RFQ) for unit costs to replace old and deteriorated fire hydrants were sent to 
three contractors.  The RFQ was also posted on the city website. Two contractors submitted 
quotes as detailed below: 
 

Louie’s Trenching 
Service 

J.I. Construction

#  ITEM  UNIT QUANTITY UNIT 
COST $ 

AMOUNT $  UNIT  
COST $ 

AMOUNT 
$ 

1  Remove and replace fire hydrant. 
New hydrant and fittings supplied 
by city. Reinstate ground to original 
condition. 

Each   3  2340  7020  4000  12000 

2  Remove and replace hydrant valve 
if required by city. New valve and 
fittings provided by city. 

Each  3  450  1350  4800  14400 

3  Install new hydrant valve if required 
by city. New valve and fittings 
provided by city. 

Each  2  1650  3300  2000  4000 

  TOTAL COST 
 

      11670    30400 

 
This project involves the replacement of fire hydrants and valves at various locations throughout 
the city. All work will be coordinated with Veolia and the Fire Department.  
 
The quote from Louie’s Trenching Service is the best value option. We have $12,500 budgeted this 
year for replacing fire hydrants. 
 
I recommend the city council approves a contract with Louie’s Trenching Service to replace fire 
hydrants and valves at unit prices detailed above. 

Page 115 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:      Andy Lewis, City Engineer      
 
DATE:      6 May 2019 
 
RE:      Replacement of Watermain Valves – Approval of Quotes 
 
Request for quotes (RFQ) for unit costs to replace old and deteriorated watermain valves were 
sent to three contractors.  The RFQ was also posted on the city website. Two contractors 
submitted quotes as detailed below: 
 

Louie’s Trenching Service  J.I. Construction

#  ITEM  UNIT QUANTITY UNIT 
COST $ 

AMOUNT $  UNIT  
COST $ 

AMOUNT 
$ 

1  Remove and replace watermain 
valve. New valve and fittings 
supplied by city.  

Each   4  2150  8600  4100  16400 

2  Install new valve. New valve and 
fittings supplied by city. 

Each  3  2150  6450  3800  11400 

  TOTAL COST 
 

      15050    27800 

 
This project involves the replacement of watermain valves at various locations throughout the city. 
All work will be coordinated with Veolia and the Fire Department.  
 
The quote from Louie’s Trenching Service is the best value option. We have $10,00 budgeted this 
year for replacing watermain valves. 
 
I recommend the city council approves a contract with Louie’s Trenching Service to replace 
watermain valves at unit costs detailed above. 

Page 116 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    May 8, 2019 

RE:    New Public Works Truck and Equipment 
 

Our recently approved budget includes $90,000 for the purchase of a new truck for the Public 
Works Department.  New equipment for the new truck, including a platform bed, snow plow, 
and salt spreader are also included in the budget amount.  Bids were advertised and distributed 
to numerous dealerships and equipment suppliers.  Two bids were received for the truck and 
five bids were received for the equipment.  I am writing to present the bid results and 
recommend the purchase of a truck with equipment. 

 
Table 1.  New Ford F‐450 Truck and Chassis 

 

Dealership  Business Location Year  Make Cost 

Runde Auto Group  East Dubuque, IL  2019 Ford  $26,179 

Runde Auto Group  East Dubuque, IL  2020 Ford  $27,194  

 
The bid results for the equipment are as follows: 

 

Table 2.  Equipment Costs for New Truck 
 

Company  Business Location Cost 

Grant County Truck  Cuba City, WI  $34,820  

Monroe Truck Equipment Monroe, WI  $34,857 

Driveline  Dubuque, IA  $38,112  

Bonnell Industries  Dixon, IL  $40,560  

Henderson  Manchester, IA  $43,832 

 
Public Works Director, Jim Rigdon, has reviewed the truck and equipment specifications and 
bids.  He recommends purchasing the 2019 Ford truck from Runde Auto group for $26,179.  
This price includes a trade‐in price of $22,500 for our 2012 Ford F‐350.  He recommends the 
equipment package and build‐up from Grant County Truck for $34,820.  The total package cost 
for truck and equipment would be $60,999.  This is significantly under the $90,000 budget.  I 
recommend approval of the purchases and trade‐in.   

Page 117 of 130



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                               101 Green Street · P.O. Box 310 · Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050     •     Facsimile: 815-777-3083     •     www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Mayor Renner, City Council & City Administrator 

FROM:  Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  May 6, 2019 

RE: Cal. No. 19SUB-01, Applicant & Owner: T&C Wienen Enterprises, 2955 Red Gates Drive, 
Galena, IL 61036.  Location: Parcel: 22-200-133-00, Part of the NW ½ of the NW Quarter 
of Section 24, Township 28 North, Range 1 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian, Galena, 
Jo Daviess County, Illinois.  Common Address: 618 Gear Street.  Request for approval of 
Final Plan & Plat to subdivide four residential lots from the larger parcel. 

  
Summary: 

 
The applicant proposes to subdivide four, single-family residential lots from the larger 13.08-acre parcel to 
construct new homes.  The lots will take access from Gear Street.   
 
At their meeting on March 13, 2019, the Zoning Board of Appeals voted to send a positive recommendation 
to the City Council to rezone the proposed property from Limited Agriculture to Low Density Residential 
district and to approve the Preliminary Plan & Plat of Grandview Subdivision.  The ZBA also approved the 
variance for the front setback to be established at 30’ for the subdivision. 
 
At their meeting on March 25, 2019, the Council approved the rezoning and preliminary plan & plat.  
Subsequently, the ordinance readings were completed by the Council. 
 
This request is for the Final Plan & Plat approval.  No changes have been made to the preliminary plan & 
plat and the Staff recommends approval.   
 
If approved, a performance bond or surety is required by the applicant for the proposed infrastructure 
improvements.  Once secured, the final plat will be signed by the respective authorities and the plat will be 
recorded. 
 

Page 118 of 130



Page 119 of 130



ORDINANCE NO.  O.19. 
 

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING 
A SUPPLEMENT TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR 
THE CITY OF GALENA, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 
WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, Ohio, has completed 

the Seventeenth Supplement to the Code of Ordinances for the City of Galena, which 
supplement contains all ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted since the prior 
supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Galena; and, 
  

WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation has recommended the revision or 
addition of certain sections of the Code of Ordinances which are based on or make reference to 
sections of the Illinois Compiled Statutes; and, 
  

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to accept these updated sections in 
accordance with the changes of the law of the State of Illinois; and, 
  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to provide for the usual daily operation of the municipality 
and for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and general welfare of the 
municipality that this ordinance take effect at an early date; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GALENA: 
 
Section I.  That the Seventeenth Supplement to the Code of Ordinances for the City of Galena 
as submitted by American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, Ohio, and as attached 
hereto be and the same is hereby adopted by reference as if set out in its entirety.  
 
Section II.  Such supplement shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 
approval by the City Council and the Clerk of the City of Galena is hereby authorized and 
ordered to insert such supplement into the copy of the Code of Ordinances kept on file in the 
Municipal Offices of the City of Galena.   
 
Section III.  This ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the 
immediate preservation of the peace, health, safety and general welfare of the people of this 
municipality and shall take effect at the earliest date provided by law.   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City of Galena on this 13th day of May, 2019.   
 
AYES:    NAYS:   ABSENT: 
 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________  
  (SEAL)               Terry Renner, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  
     Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 120 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ADDOCO INC (971)
00084751 1 Invoice SHRUB BED SUPPLIES 04/18/2019 432.00 17.52.652.00

Total ADDOCO INC (971): 432.00

ALBAUGH, ROBERT CRAIG (1084)
042519 1 Invoice CONSULTING SERVICES 04/25/2019 430.00 01.45.532.00

Total ALBAUGH, ROBERT CRAIG (1084): 430.00

ALL STAR POWERWASH, INC. (120167)
6755 1 Invoice FACILITY REPAIRS 04/26/2019 50,505.00 59.55.511.01

Total ALL STAR POWERWASH, INC. (120167): 50,505.00

AMBROZ, TAMARA (120673)
363475 1 Invoice VEHICLE DAMAGE CLAI 04/24/2019 172.51 01.11.929.01

Total AMBROZ, TAMARA (120673): 172.51

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
040419 1 Invoice LONG DISTANCE/ADMINI 04/04/2019 19.99 01.13.552.00
040419 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 04/04/2019 .09 22.22.552.00
040419 3 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  04/04/2019 66.51 01.13.552.00
040419 4 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 04/04/2019 11.95 01.21.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 98.54

AZAVAR AUDIT (120348)
147412 1 Invoice REV AUDIT FEES 05/01/2019 41.94 01.11.549.00

Total AZAVAR AUDIT (120348): 41.94

BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788)
355533 1 Invoice CATCH BASIN REPAIR 04/20/2019 393.00 01.41.514.06

Total BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788): 393.00

BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854)
0187054 1 Invoice BIKE TRAIL BLADE 04/29/2019 236.92 17.52.517.01

Total BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854): 236.92

C & C EMBROIDERY, INC. (630)
530 1 Invoice CITIZEN'S ACADEMY PO 04/25/2019 189.96 01.21.549.00

Total C & C EMBROIDERY, INC. (630): 189.96

CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588)
214223 1 Invoice SLUDGE BARN 04/26/2019 78.00 01.41.863.09

Total CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588): 78.00

Page 121 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

CIVIL MATERIALS (120397)
115445 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 04/16/2019 135.03 01.41.614.04
115445 2 Invoice BIKE TRAIL 04/16/2019 384.23 17.52.517.01

Total CIVIL MATERIALS (120397): 519.26

CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY (224)
S506452620 1 Invoice PW GARAGE OUTSIDE LI 04/24/2019 106.62 01.41.511.00

Total CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY (224): 106.62

DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867)
905108 1 Invoice ST. SIGNS 04/24/2019 109.51 01.41.652.04

Total DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867): 109.51

DINGES FIRE COMPANY (120340)
55190 1 Invoice NEW BUNKER PANTS 04/04/2019 1,163.97 22.22.652.00

Total DINGES FIRE COMPANY (120340): 1,163.97

DRIVE LINE, INC. (285)
239368 1 Invoice 2014 1-TON 04/30/2019 374.45 01.41.613.01

Total DRIVE LINE, INC. (285): 374.45

DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631)
142013 1 Invoice FIRE EXTINGUISHER CH 03/28/2019 62.06 01.13.511.06

Total DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631): 62.06

DUBUQUE MULCH CO. (120600)
9046 1 Invoice SHRUB BEDS 04/26/2019 214.00 17.52.517.02

Total DUBUQUE MULCH CO. (120600): 214.00

ELITE PLUMBING (120136)
7156 1 Invoice REPAIR STOOL 04/17/2019 21.90 22.22.611.00
7225 1 Invoice PIPE CLEANING/850 YOU 05/03/2019 140.00 52.43.929.00

Total ELITE PLUMBING (120136): 161.90

EUCLID MANAGERS (120626)
041519 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE DENTAL #56 04/15/2019 1,617.80 01.13.451.01

Total EUCLID MANAGERS (120626): 1,617.80

GALENA ARC (850)
051319 1 Invoice HAHN COUNCIL SALARY  05/13/2019 200.00 01.11.432.00

Total GALENA ARC (850): 200.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00065001 1 Invoice ADS/GALENIAN 04/15/2019 437.50 59.55.553.00

Page 122 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

050119 1 Invoice ADS 05/01/2019 229.25 59.55.553.00
050119 2 Invoice ADS 05/01/2019 148.00 13.44.929.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 814.75

GALL'S, INC. (712)
012458387 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/NATHAN 04/11/2019 93.94 01.21.471.15
012458402 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/KIM 04/11/2019 42.65 01.21.471.15

12435840 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/BILL 04/09/2010 157.19 01.21.471.15

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 293.78

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
050119 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 6.29 01.13.654.01
050119 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 309.77 01.41.514.06
050119 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 146.78 01.41.614.04
050119 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 23.72 01.41.652.00
050119 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 3.06 01.41.652.04
050119 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 827.64 13.44.540.04
050119 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 10.78 17.52.514.00
050119 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 201.71 17.52.652.00
050119 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 17.07 22.22.611.00
050119 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/01/2019 15.81 22.22.613.00

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 1,562.63

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
99730 1 Invoice WEBSITE HOSTING FEE 03/01/2019 115.00 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 115.00

GUARDIAN (120502)
041519 1 Invoice VISION INSURANCE 04/15/2019 187.19 01.13.451.01

Total GUARDIAN (120502): 187.19

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI013446 1 Invoice REPAIR AIR LEAK 113 04/16/2019 330.69 22.22.613.00
GWI013626 1 Invoice TRUCK REPAIR 05/08/2019 4,637.91 52.43.929.00

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 4,968.60

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
051319 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 05/13/2019 290.00 01.13.511.07
051319 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  05/13/2019 270.00 01.13.511.08
051319 3 Invoice PARKS RESTROOMS 05/13/2019 765.00 17.52.422.00
051319 4 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 05/13/2019 258.50 01.13.511.09

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 1,583.50

HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99)
46035 1 Invoice REPAIRS 04/23/2019 198.95 01.21.511.00

Page 123 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99): 198.95

HULSCHER'S FENCING, INC. (164)
9003 1 Invoice FENCE INSTALL 05/03/2019 1,190.00 17.52.820.06

Total HULSCHER'S FENCING, INC. (164): 1,190.00

ICMA (119444)
050119 1 Invoice ICMA DUES 05/01/2019 832.00 01.11.561.00

Total ICMA (119444): 832.00

IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260)
72137 1 Invoice DESIGN 04/26/2019 11,126.25 51.42.532.01

Total IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260): 11,126.25

IPS, INC. (119554)
050119 1 Invoice RESURFACE DIVING BO 05/01/2019 1,200.00 59.55.511.01
050119 2 Invoice SLIDE COATING 05/01/2019 1,500.00 59.55.511.01

Total IPS, INC. (119554): 2,700.00

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
1904944 1 Invoice STARTUP 04/29/2019 70.00 59.55.511.02

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 70.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
050119 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 05/01/2019 5,277.58 15.41.572.00
050119 2 Invoice LIFT STATION 05/01/2019 130.68 52.43.850.09
050119 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 05/01/2019 613.99 01.21.571.01
050119 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 05/01/2019 132.94 12.10.571.01
050119 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 05/01/2019 89.53 17.52.571.01
050119 6 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 05/01/2019 432.94 20.25.576.01
050119 7 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 05/01/2019 364.57 22.22.576.01
050119 8 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 05/01/2019 391.39 58.54.571.01
050119 9 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS/ELECT 05/01/2019 35.85 01.41.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 7,469.47

JO DAVIESS COUNTY EMA (120400)
102-041519 1 Invoice CODE RED ANNUAL FEE 04/15/2019 2,263.14 22.22.929.00

Total JO DAVIESS COUNTY EMA (120400): 2,263.14

JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393)
050119 1 Invoice RECORDING FEES/GATE 05/01/2019 144.00 01.14.553.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393): 144.00

JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330)
032219 1 Invoice AERIAL MAP 195-05 03/22/2019 18.75 01.16.553.00

Page 124 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330): 18.75

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
050119 1 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 05/01/2019 100.00 22.22.538.00
050119 2 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 05/01/2019 200.12 01.21.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
041519 1 Invoice CLOTHING 04/15/2019 1,115.16 01.41.579.02
041519 2 Invoice TOOLS 04/15/2019 12.99 01.41.653.00
041519 3 Invoice EQUIPMENT 04/15/2019 649.98 17.52.514.00

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 1,778.13

KIEFER AQUATICS (120674)
692207 1 Invoice POOL UNIFORMS 05/03/2019 281.00 59.55.691.04

Total KIEFER AQUATICS (120674): 281.00

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9306667998 1 Invoice MISC. 04/24/2019 223.84 17.52.652.00
9306667998 2 Invoice MISC. 04/24/2019 100.10 01.41.652.00
9306667998 3 Invoice SHIPPING 04/24/2019 23.81 17.52.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 347.75

LEIFKER, DARLENE (120680)
051319 1 Invoice REFUND 05/13/2019 25.00 17.52.929.00

Total LEIFKER, DARLENE (120680): 25.00

LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376)
1343164-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 04/30/2019 40.00 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376): 40.00

LITHO SPECIALISTS (63)
29758 1 Invoice CHECKS 04/30/2019 703.00 01.13.554.00

Total LITHO SPECIALISTS (63): 703.00

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
050819 1 Invoice CONSTRUCTION 05/08/2019 82,371.60 41.61.860.09

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 82,371.60

MACKAY METERS, INC. (120302)
1053297 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY ANNUAL  04/08/2019 1,440.00 53.48.555.00

Total MACKAY METERS, INC. (120302): 1,440.00

Page 125 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

MEDICAL ASSOCIATES CLINIC (1120)
100239 1 Invoice PHYSICAL 03/07/2019 80.00 22.22.929.00

Total MEDICAL ASSOCIATES CLINIC (1120): 80.00

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (120561)
041519 1 Invoice KIP 04/15/2019 244.26 52.43.549.00
041519 2 Invoice COPIES 04/15/2019 288.72 01.13.579.00
729467 1 Invoice TONER 04/30/2019 12.23 01.13.651.02

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (120561): 545.21

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
189404 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 05/01/2019 14,353.88 13.44.540.04
189404 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 05/01/2019 4,958.16 13.44.540.00
189404 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 05/01/2019 60.00 13.44.544.03
189404 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 05/01/2019 148.00 01.41.573.00

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 19,520.04

MOSER, MIKE (120679)
050819 1 Invoice CREDIT BALANCE REFU 05/08/2019 10.96 98.115.0

Total MOSER, MIKE (120679): 10.96

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS (120677)
40258 1 Invoice SOFTWARE SUPPORT/C 04/11/2019 3,250.00 01.21.532.00
40258 2 Invoice SOFTWARE SUPPORT/C 04/11/2019 21.83 01.21.512.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS (120677): 3,271.83

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
043019 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 04/30/2019 52.92 17.52.652.00
043019 2 Invoice MISC. EQUIPMENT 04/30/2019 31.99 01.41.652.00
043019 3 Invoice TOOLS 04/30/2019 11.90 01.41.653.00

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 96.81

NICOR (151)
050119 1 Invoice POOL-GAS 05/01/2019 167.72 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 167.72

NICOR (F) (118924)
050119 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 05/01/2019 65.21 01.13.571.05
050119 2 Invoice POLICE-GAS 05/01/2019 202.58 01.21.571.05
050119 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 05/01/2019 213.02 01.41.571.05
050119 4 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 05/01/2019 227.68 22.22.571.05
050119 5 Invoice TURNER HALL-GAS 05/01/2019 534.38 58.54.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 1,242.87

NORTHRUP, JOLENE (120676)
050819 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 05/08/2019 250.00 58.54.929.00

Page 126 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total NORTHRUP, JOLENE (120676): 250.00

NW ILLINOIS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (120672)
185 1 Invoice NW IL ECONOMIC DEV -  05/10/2019 3,000.00 01.11.929.10

Total NW ILLINOIS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (120672): 3,000.00

O'HERRON CO.INC., RAY (548)
1920964 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/KIM 04/15/2019 58.93 01.21.471.15
1924633 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/NATHAN 05/02/2019 58.93 01.21.471.15

Total O'HERRON CO.INC., RAY (548): 117.86

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)
050719 1 Invoice POSTAGE 05/07/2019 10.69 01.21.551.00
050719 2 Invoice MEMORIAL STICKERS/S 05/07/2019 30.00 01.21.513.06

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 40.69

RUNDE CHEVROLET (420)
438078 1 Invoice 2014 1-TON 03/06/2019 1,047.77 01.41.613.01

Total RUNDE CHEVROLET (420): 1,047.77

SALAZAR, JAIME (120675)
050819 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 05/08/2019 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total SALAZAR, JAIME (120675): 200.00

SEDIVY, JODI (120681)
050319 1 Invoice CERTIFICATION REIMBU 05/03/2019 298.41 59.55.691.06

Total SEDIVY, JODI (120681): 298.41

SITES, JOSHUA (120678)
050619 1 Invoice CREDIT BALANCE REFU 05/06/2019 7.12 98.115.0

Total SITES, JOSHUA (120678): 7.12

SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196)
1561331 1 Invoice SKID LOADER TRADE BA 03/25/2019 4,000.00 20.25.832.03

Total SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196): 4,000.00

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
043019 1 Invoice FUEL 04/30/2019 274.01 01.41.655.00

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 274.01

SW WISCONSIN & NORTHER IL FIRE/RESCUE (120671)
5617 1 Invoice SWANI DUES 05/01/2019 30.00 22.22.561.00

Page 127 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total SW WISCONSIN & NORTHER IL FIRE/RESCUE (120671): 30.00

T & T ELECTRONICS (120055)
70065 1 Invoice TV RECYCLING 04/29/2019 675.00 13.44.929.00

Total T & T ELECTRONICS (120055): 675.00

TAMMY'S PIGGLY WIGGLY (120385)
042719 1 Invoice EXPLORERS BOY SCOU 04/27/2019 44.53 01.21.549.00
043019 1 Invoice CITIZEN'S ACADEMY RE 04/30/2019 23.98 01.21.549.00
050719 1 Invoice CITIZEN'S ACADEMY GR 05/07/2019 34.99 01.21.549.00

Total TAMMY'S PIGGLY WIGGLY (120385): 103.50

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601)
T1928052 1 Invoice MONTHLY CHARGE FOR  04/15/2019 1,265.60 01.21.542.00

Total TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601): 1,265.60

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730)
041819 1 Invoice POSTAGE 04/18/2019 500.00 01.13.551.00

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730): 500.00

TRI STATE TRAVEL (355)
031819 1 Invoice REFUND/DUPLICATE LIC 03/18/2019 50.00 01.11.912.00

Total TRI STATE TRAVEL (355): 50.00

TRI-STATE HISTORICAL PRESENTATIONS (120477)
051319 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 05/13/2019 250.00 17.52.929.00

Total TRI-STATE HISTORICAL PRESENTATIONS (120477): 250.00

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
6068 1 Invoice PORTA POTTY RENTAL 04/15/2019 495.00 17.52.579.01

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 495.00

TRI-STATE SHRED (119848)
35779 1 Invoice PAPER SHREDDING EVE 04/26/2019 350.00 13.44.929.00

Total TRI-STATE SHRED (119848): 350.00

US CELLULAR (92)
041819 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 04/18/2019 38.27 01.41.552.00
041819 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 04/18/2019 38.27 01.11.552.00
041819 3 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 04/18/2019 38.27 01.21.552.01
041819 4 Invoice HUNTINGTON/CELL PHO 04/18/2019 36.95 01.216.0
041819 5 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 04/18/2019 38.27 01.21.552.01
041819 6 Invoice TONY/CELL PHONE 04/18/2019 43.59 01.261.0
041819 7 Invoice POOL IPADS 04/18/2019 112.41 59.55.552.00
041819 8 Invoice POOL IPADS 04/18/2019 172.09- 59.55.552.00

Page 128 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     9
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

041819 9 Invoice MORAN/CELL PHONE 04/18/2019 19.00 01.261.0

Total US CELLULAR (92): 192.94

US POSTAL SERVICE (1076)
050119 1 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 05/01/2019 500.00 51.42.551.00
050119 2 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 05/01/2019 250.00 52.43.551.00
050119 3 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 05/01/2019 750.00 13.44.551.00

Total US POSTAL SERVICE (1076): 1,500.00

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)
8162 1 Invoice FLOWERS/TROOPER WO 05/02/2019 50.00 01.21.549.00

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 50.00

VAN METER INC. (141)
S010626720 1 Invoice ST. LIGHT MAINTENANC 05/03/2019 696.22 01.41.514.11

Total VAN METER INC. (141): 696.22

VEOLIA (120598)
90190874 1 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 04/01/2019 27,299.39 52.43.515.01
90190874 2 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 04/01/2019 27,299.39 51.42.515.00
90194305 1 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 05/01/2019 27,299.39 52.43.515.01
90194305 2 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 05/01/2019 27,299.39 51.42.515.00

Total VEOLIA (120598): 109,197.56

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
050119 1 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  05/01/2019 38.01 01.21.652.03

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 38.01

VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507)
011519 1 Invoice CEMETERY PARK 01/15/2019 1,155.00 17.52.820.06

Total VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507): 1,155.00

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D070435 1 Invoice COPIER PAPER 05/03/2019 230.40 01.21.651.00
DO70484 1 Invoice AIR FRESHNER 05/03/2019 89.85 58.54.654.01

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 320.25

WEX BANK (119104)
050119 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 05/01/2019 1,019.71 01.41.655.00
050119 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 05/01/2019 173.16 17.52.655.03
050119 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 05/01/2019 1,713.96 01.21.655.00
050119 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 05/01/2019 99.37 01.46.655.00
050119 5 Invoice FIRE-GAS 05/01/2019 308.31 22.22.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 3,314.51

Page 129 of 130



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     10
Input Dates: 4/23/2019 - 5/31/2019 May 09, 2019  11:09AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
050119 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 05/01/2019 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 110.00

WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092)
11505 1 Invoice TREE REMOVAL 05/01/2019 2,800.00 01.41.517.02

Total WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092): 2,800.00

WHKS & CO. (119367)
39018 1 Invoice CONSTRUCTION SERVIC 04/16/2019 369.00 15.41.850.00

Total WHKS & CO. (119367): 369.00

Grand Totals: 337,565.94

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 6023434
Vendor number hash - split: 8662808
Total number of invoices: 96
Total number of transactions: 155

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 337,565.94 337,565.94

Grand Totals: 337,565.94 337,565.94

Page 130 of 130


	00.00 Agenda 05.13.19
	01.0176 Big Bills Liquor License
	02.0178 Minutes cc042219
	03.0180 Employee Appointments
	04.0181 Halloween Parade
	05.0182 Cemetery Walk
	06.0183 Stair Challenge
	07.0184 Street Closure for Picnic
	08.0185 Wastewater Plant Repair
	09.0186 Sewer Camera
	10.0187 Refrigerated Samplers
	11.0188 Concrete Testing Machine
	12.0189 ARC Funding Agreement
	13.0190 Tower Agreement
	042219a
	Hospital Tower Agreement 2019
	FRANKLIN STREET WATER TOWER EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION (v2)
	Plan Overview
	1. SSE Radio Array Installation
	2. NNW Radio Array Installation
	3. Small Equipment Enclosure Installation
	4. Cabling
	5. Power
	6. High-Level Timeline/Schedule
	7. General Tower Care



	14.0191 Museum Funding Agreement
	15.0192 Seasonal Employee Wages
	16.0193 Liquor License Request
	051319c
	Scanned Image_20190426_091705

	17.0194 Water Sewer Contract
	Committee Report to Council
	Appendix A Evaluation Form
	Appendix B Draft Contract 051319
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	18.0195 2019 Deer Report
	2019 Deer Report to Council 051319
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F

	19.0196 Rec Park Parking Grant
	051319b
	Park picture
	2018 Rec Park Parking

	20.0197 Hydrant Contract
	21.0198 Valve Contract
	22.0199 New Truck
	23.0200 Grandview Subdivision
	19SUB-01 Wienen Subdivision Final Plat
	18-051 Grandview FP 2

	24.0201 Code Supplement 17
	25.0202 Warrants 05.13.19



